


about this report

Our Annual Report summarises Council’s 2016/17 activities, our achievements, our challenges and a snapshot for the
year to come. The annual report is a major accountability tool in Council’s governance framework, which provides non-
financial and financial information to enable the community to assess the performance of Council in achieving the goals
and objectives outlined in the Corporate Plan 2013-2018.

The Local Government Act and Regulations lets Council know what is required in the Annual Report for each financial
year. We welcome feedback from our community and key stakeholders on this report and on our performance
throughout the year.

To provide feedback please contact Council on (07) 4620 8888 or email council@balonne.gld.gov.au

acknowledgement

We acknowledge the traditional custodians of this land that we work, live and play on, and pay our respect to their
cultures, their ancestors and to the elders, past, present and future.




about this report & acknowledgement

our region
our vision, our mission & our values
our purpose
our mayor
our councillors
our ceo
our leaders
our customers
our people
our reputation
our performance
- wise planning & design
- strong & resilient communities
- prosperity for all
- river country stewardship
- inclusive and ethical governance
community financial report
statutory information
appendices
- 1 special rates & charges
- 2 councillor expenses remuneration

- 3 financial statements

contents




our region

The Balonne Shire is located in
Queensland, about 500km inland
from the Queensland capital,
Brisbane, and is nestled just above
the New South Wales border.

Our Shire serves as a bridge
between the expanse of the great
outback to its west, and the Great
Dividing Range and capital city to
its east.

Across 31,151.8km?, 4480
residents call one of our seven
communities home — St George,
Thallon, Dirranbandi, Bollon,
Nindigully, Mungindi, and Hebel.

One of the unique things about
our Shire is that every town is
situated beside a river.

Our towns are known for their
rich history, friendly locals, bird
life, wide open spaces and relaxed
country lifestyle.

Traditionally, the Shire’s economy
has been built around agriculture,
in particular the production of
cotton, grain, sheep and cattle.

Growth has been shown in
new areas such as tourism, and
horticultural crops such as grapes,
onions, blueberries (left), broccoli
and garlic.

The Shire hub, St George
(opposite), sits at the intersection
of six highways, providing
connectivity for the transportation
of goods and a central meeting
place for residents and the
travelling public.
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our population
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22% aged 0-14 years*
63.2% aged 15-64 years*
14.8% aged 65+ years*
Median age of 39.1 years*

15.9% were Aboriginal and/
or Torres Strait Islander
peoples*

*Source: Queensland Government
Statisticians Office

our climate
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Average daily temperature:
13.6°C-27.8°C
Average annual rainfall:
480mm

our region

4 approved O
new houses in e

2016/17 year m =
$1.4m of -]
building value&rﬂ]_Q

in residential
building approvals

Unemployment rate of
3.6%

741.6km? of protected area
692.1km? of national park

our region

our services

5 early childhood education

and care services*

1 long day care service
4 aged care services”

64 aged care service

operational places

7 schools™

4 hospitals

*as at 31 August 2017 “as at 30 June

2016 ~asat 30June 2015

St George at sunset.




our vision, our mission, our values

Our vision is to respond to community needs and expectations and to provide a range of services through quality
leadership, policies and community representation.

Our mission to anticipate our community’s needs and expectations and provide a range of services through quality
leadership, policies and community representation.

Our values will enable us to achieve our vision and mission:




Our purpose is to provide for the
current and future residents of
Balonne and visitors to our region.

We provide high-quality
leadership and advocacy on
behalf of our community and
actively lobby for economic relief
following the detrimental effects
of the Murray Darling Basin water
buy-back scheme.

Our team provides the services,
facilities and activities that benefit
our community - from parks
and playgrounds for people of
all ages, to the sporting grounds
and showgrounds that keep our
residents and visitors active and
entertained.

Council supplies water using both
bore and river water supplies.

Each of our towns has a
community hall which is
maintained by Council. There is
a main library in St George and
library facilities in Thallon, Hebel,
Bollon and Dirranbandi.

Our waste services are provided
through a contract with JJ
Richards and we have a number of
land fill sites across the Shire.

Council works in close
partnership with the Department
of Transport and Main Roads to
ensure our highways are well
maintained.

Council has a comprehensive
road maintenance program for
our local roads.

- B Hebel Library

Installing river watem
meters in St George




our mayor

For the Balonne Shire and your
Councillors, 2016-17 proved a
hectic period as we have worked to
consolidate existing projects in the
Shire and progress new projects to
develop and take the Shire forward.

This has been done against the
backdrop of agricultural challenges of
drought and water buybacks, pimelea
poisoning, an anthrax outbreak,
reductions in population and
production, increased input costs, eg
power, and many other impacts that
have affected us.

Regardless of these negative
impacts, we have achieved a number
of objectives over the 12 months.
Critical to Council operations, we
now have in place an experienced
executive team in Chief Executive
Officer Matthew Magin, Director
Corporate and Financial Services
Michelle Clarke, Director Community
and Environmental Services
Jamie Gorry and, our most recent
appointment, Director Infrastructure
Services Ross Drabble.

This Leadership Team in conjunction
with Council, is reviewing all aspects
of our operations and making
improvement and change where
necessary to increase efficiency
and provide better services to our
community.

Accordingly, we have adopted
new values for Council being
“Our Customers/Our Team/Our
Reputation” which when converted
from words to actions will enhance
our performance and give increased
value to our community.

Over the period there have been
successes and challenges. Among
these | would count the Murray
Darling water buybacks from our area,
completion of the Hutt Street River
Water Pump Station, negotiation of
the new Waste/Recycling Contract,
and dealing with the fluctuation in
property valuations resulting from
the DNRM revaluation of Shire
land.

Dealing with each of these
separately, most residents would be
aware of the impact of the buybacks
in reducing the water available for
irrigated production and consequently
the reduction in the productive area
resulting in a reduction in return from
that farming area.

Council has and will continue to
advocate strongly for no more water
buybacks from our area.

Council is also advocating for
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assistance in developing new
productive industries or support for
existing industries in order to increase
productivity of our Shire.

We have achieved a number of
objectives this year, notably:

e The commissioning of the Hutt
Street River Water Pumping Station
and its successful and seamless
integration as the sole supplier of
river water to St George

There have been

successes and challenges

e Negotiation and implementation
of the new waste/recycling contract
with a much improved service
for a minimal cost increase to the
ratepayer. The recycling efficiency is
extremely satisfying as volumes are
significantly greater than anticipated
and thus reducing the volume of
waste going to the pit and saving
money in the long term.

e The revaluation of land in the
Shire and the significant fluctuations

between past and current valuation in
the rural area was a cause for concern
and resulted in many rate modelling
workshops involving Council, senior
executives and consultants. The
result was that effectively there

was an increase of 2% on total rates
received by Council. In an attempt

to reduce the significant impact on
those land holders whose valuations
had increased by up to 200%, Council
capped the rates increase at 30%
for this year. We acknowledge
that the resultant increase to some
was still significant and further
modelling will be undertaken

in 2017/18 to investigate if an
alternative model giving better
outcomes is available.

Generally, we have had a very busy
year. Certainly the drought and other
challenges have not helped our rural
sector and this flows through the
community. Dry times make road
maintenance and other activities
difficult for Council as well but we do
endeavour to retain our maintenance
levels and address problems as they
arise.



Cr Richard Marsh
Mayor

Elected to Council in July
2002 and elected Mayor in
2016.

Responsible for the portfolios
of Disaster Management;
Regional Road Group;
Indigenous Affairs; Economic
Development; Financial
Management; Human
Resource Management
& Enterprise Bargaining;
Regional Planning, Plannning
Scheme & Development
Regulations.

I would encourage all residents to
use the free phone application Snap,
Send, Solve to report problems. It is
quick and easy to use, identifies the
location of the problem precisely
and alleviates the necessity to send a
letter, email or make a phone call.

| thank our Senior Leadership Group
and the staff for their efforts this year
and for their adoption of change as
we seek to improve the efficiency and
performance of our operations.

I thank Councillors for their efforts
and support over the year and the
time they commit to their duties and
attendance at the various workshops
and meetings necessary to ensure
that results are achieved.

To the community, thank you also for
your input and understanding as we
all work to develop and improve our
Shire.

Cr Richard Marsh
Mayor

Cr Fiona Gaske
Deputy Mayor

Elected to
Council in 2012.

Responsible for
the portfolios
of Financial
Management;
Information
Communication
Technology; Human Resource
Management & Enterprise
Bargaining; Asset Management;
Cleansing - Waste Management,
Refuse Collection & Landfill;
Community Safety; Cemeteries;
Parks & Gardens; Economic
Development; Public Health;
Cultural Development inc Cultural
Centre; and Libraries.

Cr Samantha O’Toole

Elected to
Council in 2016.

Responsible for
the portfolios
of Regional
Planning,
Planning
Scheme &
Development Regulations; Water
Resource Management & Urban
Water & Waste Water; Asset
Management; Urban Streets,
Storm Water & Footpaths;
Aerodromes; Public Transport;
Environmental Health; Economic
Development; and Recreation
Facilities - Pools, Sporting Fields,
Skate Park, Court Sports.

Cr Scott Scriven

Elected to
Council in 2016.

Responsible for
the portfolios
of Regional
Planning,
Planning
Scheme &
Development Regulations;
Information Communication
Technology; Asset Management;
Cleansing - Waste Management,
Refuse Collection & Landfill; Stock
Routes & Commons & Water
Facilities; and Plant Pest Control
and Animal Pest Control.

our councillors

Cr Robyn Fuhrmeister

Elected to
Council in 2016.

Responsible for
the portfolios
of Urban
Animal Control;
Tourism, Stock
Routes &
Commons & Water Facilities;
Plant Pest Control; Animal Pest
Control; Administration & Depot
Buildings, Staff Housing, Buildings
& Halls; Community Events;
Museums; and RADF.

Cr Robert Paul

Elected to
Council in 2012.

Responsible for
the portfolios
of WORK; Shire
Roads, Bridges
& Drainage
- East; Fleet
Management; and Showgrounds
& Horse Sports Facilities - St
George, Thallon and Nindigully.

Cr lan Todd

Elected to
Council in 2016.

Responsible for
the portfolios of &
Water Resource &
Management &
Urban Water &
Waste Water;
Information Communication
Technology; Workplace Health
& Safety; Urban Streets, Storm
Water & Footpaths; Community
Safety; Great Artesian Basin;
Economic Development; WORK;
Shire Roads, Bridges & Drainage
(West); Showgrounds & Horse
Sports Facilities - Dirranbandi,
Bollon & Hebel; and Fleet
Management.




our ceo

Having taken up my appointment as Chief Executive
Officer at Balonne Shire Council in November 2016 it
really was a case of just managing what was in front of me
and developing plans and strategies for the new 2017/18
financial year.

In putting together those plans and strategies it became
clearly evident that this Shire was almost completely
reliant on its ability to win government grants, attract
external works for its workforce e.g. road building, and
generally be in constant survival mode.

General rates, which are levied against all our
landholders, represent approximately 40% of our revenue
base which means council has
to be both innovative and frugal
in how it raises and expends its
funds each and every year.

This presents a significant
challenge for both Councillors and
Council Officers when framing
our annual budget as we are very much gazing into a
crystal ball when determining what amount we will secure
through government grants and external works each year.
This can only be done effectively through historical analysis
of revenue secured and the quality of our work delivered
in the preceding years.

Whilst this analysis does shed some light on our potential
earnings for the year ahead it is an indication only and
we must always be closely monitoring the political mood
of the state and federal governments, assessing potential
budget impacts and responding accordingly.

This methodology, whilst having been used for many
years now, is not sustainable into the future as pressure
builds on local government bodies to be financially
sustainable. Queensland Treasury Corporation (QTC)
describes financial sustainability as: A local government

Reinvigorating our
economy is everyone’s
responsibility

is financially sustainable if the local government is able to
maintain its financial capital and infrastructure capital over
the long term. To break that down into plain English we
could simply say we must always have the cash to pay our
bills and to maintain our assets and services.

Council is working very hard with both levels of
government to secure funding for an economic
development officer to drive innovation and diversification
within our economy and also a grants officer so we can
maximise the amount of government money coming into
the shire.

Reinvigorating our economy though is everyone’s
responsibility by driving innovation,
encouraging investment and re-
investment in our shire, developing
alternative crops and products to
the more traditional ones and as a
resident simply through supporting
local businesses in our region.

Another great opportunity to grow our economy is the
number of visitors to our towns as a result of the “grey
nomads” passing through. By providing them with good
service, having clean towns and just by showing how
friendly we are as a community will encourage them to
stay longer and hopefully spend more.

So let me ask you the question “Are you helping grow our
shire or holding us back?”

Matthew Magin
Chief Executive Officer




our leaders

Community Leadership

We have an active and engaged community. Our residents
and local stakeholders wish to participate in, and inform
our decision-making to ensure the delivery of high quality
services and assets for the community. Our Councillors
play a key role providing the strategic direction for council.
The responsibilities of Councillors are defined in the Local
Government Act 2009. We have a number of roles to play
in progressing the long-term objectives of the Corporate
Plan including facilitation, advocacy, education, planning,
regulation and delivery of services across the Shire to meet
the needs of current and future generations.

Our Councillors

We have seven elected representatives including the
Mayor who have just completed their first full financial
year as a council.

Councillor Induction

Councillors attended a workshop early in their first term
on Meeting Governance presented by the Department of
Infrastructure, Local Government & Planning.

During the year Councillors participated in a range of
professional development opportunities with attendance
at the following recorded in the 2016/17 financial year.

e Local Government Association Queensland (LGAQ)
annual conference
¢ Bush Council’s Conference

+. -Our Councillors (from left) Robert Paul, Samantha O’Toole, Scott Scrmb,y

Richard Marsh, lan Todd, Fiona Gaske and Robyn Fuhrmeister.

e South West Local Government Association
Queensland (SWLGAQ) Conference

¢ South West Regional Economic Development
(SWRED) meetings
Councillors have participated in a series of workshops with
the new Council executive team including:

¢ Rates and levies reviews

¢ Information, Communication and Technology Strategy

e Queensland Treasury Corporation Financial
Sustainability Workshop

¢ Queensland Auditor’s Office Technical Workshop

¢ Presentation from NBN Corporation

e Waste modelling workshop

e Budget workshops

South West Local Government
Association of Queensland

The Balonne Shire Council took over the secretariat
role of the SWLGAQ in 2016/17 hosting a conference
on 2 December 2016 and arranging the conference in
Thargomindah on 26 September, 2017.

Murray Darling Association

Representatives from the Murray Darling Basin
Association attended Council on 8 December, 2016. As a
result of this meeting our Mayor agreed to be Chairman
of Region 12 which includes all Queensland councils in the
Murray Darling Basin catchment.

11
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our customers

The customer is always right.

We put the customer at the centre of
everything we do.

Always say “Thank you”.

We listen to our customers, understand them
and work out how to best serve them.

We get things done with speed, conviction and
agility.

We go the extra mile and exceed customers’
expectations.

We are continuously working
to improve our customer
service to all stakeholders
- ratepayers, residents,
visitors, contractors and other
government departments.

This financial year we
increased social media and our
web presence to make it easier
for our customers to contact us
and disseminate information
to them.

To report a problem our
community is encouraged to
use the Snap Send and Solve
phone application which
enables them to take a picture
of the fault, pinpoints the
location of the fault and sends
the information to the relevant /
local government authority.
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Our team this year also
engaged in delivering
informative sessions on
working for council with
local youth (pictured Rural
Services Trainee Kahli Boyce,
Road Construction Trainee
Sean Beckman and Water &
Sewerage Supervisor Peter
Campbell).

We have an on-hold
information recording for
customers while they wait on
the phone for one of our staff
members.

In 2017/18 we will introduce a
new after-hours phone service |
that will capture the number -
of calls and type of issues we |,
receive outside normal working [}
hours. A

\ Shire Council
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Our executive team (from left): Director Community & Environmental Sustainability Jamie Gorry; Chief Executive Officer
Matthew Magin; Director Finance & Corporate Services Michelle Clarke and Director Infrastructure Services Ross Drabble.

Balonne Shire Mayor and Councillors

Executive Assistant

Communications

Officer

Administration
Human Resources

Workplace Health &
Safety

Computer Services
Financial Sustainability
Corporate Services
Procurement
Records
Payroll

Customer Service

Chief Executive Officer

Director
Community &
Environmental
Sustainability

Community
Development & Libraries

Environmental Health

Compliance & Building
Certification

Rural Lands
Manogement

Planning & Development
Tourism Development
Visitor Services

Economic
Development Officer

Director
Infrastructure
Services

Facilities & Aerodromes
Workshop
Water & Waste Water
Urban Infrastructure
Design
Road Construction &
Maintenance

Parks & Gardens
Works & Maintenance

13
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our people

We value teamwork and interdependence.
We are one team.

We have the same relationships with customers
as we do with each other.

We will strive to be the best - we are restless,
always learning, always improving.

We value each other - we seek and benefit from
diverse people and perspectives.

We are ambitious and courageous - we pursue
excellence, set new standards and go beyond
them.

our senior leadership group

Chief Executive Officer
Matthew Magin

Matthew joined us in

November 2016. Prior to

joining Balonne Shire Council

he was CEO at the Burdekin
Shire Council. Matthew has
extensive background in
stakeholder engagement,
government relations, economic
development and the retail
industry.

Director Community
& Environmental
Sustainability

Jamie Gorry

Jamie joined us in October
2016. He has an extensive
background in natural resource
management and agricultural
extension. Jamie holds a
Bachelor of Environmental
Management (Natural
Systems), and is studying a
Graduate Certificate in Project Management. He is a
long-term resident of southern inland Queensland.

The Senior Leadership Group (SLG) includes our Chief
Executive Officer and our three Directors.

Our SLG meets weekly to keep track of major projects,
emerging issues, strategic planning and to improve
communication between departments. This also helps
improve communication between the SLG and their
teams to ensure the whole organisation is working
together and not in isolation.

M,; e

‘ Shire Council

Director Finance &
Corporate Services

Michelle Clarke

Michelle was officially appointed
to this role in February 2017.
Michelle holds a Bachelor

of Law & Administration ,
Diploma in Local Government
Financial Management and is
currently completing a Graduate
Certificate in Professional
Accounting and a Post

Graduate Certificate in Corporate Governance and Risk
Management.

Director Infrastructure
Services

Ross Drabble

Ross permanently joined our
team in April 2017. He has

an extensive background in
infrastructure with government
and private sectors. Ross

holds an Associate Diploma

in Mechanical Engineering,
Bachelor of Economics, Master
of Industrial Relations, Master
of Business Administration and Master of Project
Management.

In 2016/17 Council bid farewell to Michael Parker
and Peter Stewart as Acting Chief Executive Officer
and Andrew MacKenzie as council’s Director Finance &
Corporate Services.

Council thanks Michael, Peter and Andrew as well as
other employees who were part of our team in 2016/17
for the work they did while with us and we wish them all
the very best in their future endeavours.




our people

It is only through our staff that Balonne Shire Council
is able to achieve our corporate objectives and enhance
services to our community.

Our employees are our most valuable asset and they are a
major factor in contributing to a positive public image.

Council’s vision “For the People” is a commitment to staff
well-being, encouraging personal and professional growth
and development, and the creation of a safe and healthy
work environment built on mutual trust, respect and
integrity.

This year we have had a high staff turnover rate of 21.83%
(not including casuals) and advertised 40 external and
internal positions during the reporting period (including 10
casual pool positions).

Our management ream recognises the our team*
need to attract and retain employees
and has been working to improve onits ~ Total: 87
recruitment and selection processes. Executive: 3

We have also introduced exit interviews

from departing employees. Corporate &

Financial Services: 12

Equal Employment
Opportunity

We are committed to the
implementation of, and adherence
to equal employment opportunity
principles in all facets of our operations.

women
We treat our employees and

employment applicants fairly when
making decisions on selection and
promotions. These decisions are made on factors such as
skills, qualifications, abilities and aptitude.

Code of Conduct

To ensure employees are aware of, and adhere to,
the expected standards of workplace behaviour and
performance, a Code of Conduct has been prepared, and is
promoted through Council’s General Induction Program.

The expectations contained within the Code of Conduct
are based upon the ethical principles outlined in the Public
Sector Ethics Act 1994, specifically:

Community &
Environmental
Sustainability: 20.5

Infrastructure Services: 51.5
Composition: 55 men, 32

*as at 30 June 2017

e integrity and impartiality

e promoting the public good

e commitment to the system of government
e accountability and transparency

All new employees are provided with a copy of the Code
of Conduct within their Induction Manual, and copies are
also available upon request.

Training & Professional Development

We strive to enhance the skills and capabilities of our
employees, in order to develop effective, efficient and
multi-skilled teams.

For an organisation to perform
effectively, emphasis must be placed
on the training and development of our
staff. In line with training guidelines we
are committed to:

’Q 3 Providing fair and equal

access for all employees in relation to
training and professional development
opportunities

. Enhancing the productivity and
performance of its employees

o Ensuring employees are
kept abreast with advancements,
technological, professional and/or
ideological, in their respective fields of
expertise

. Linking staff development and
appraisals with the identification of training needs to
ensure that Council’s strategic and operational direction
and initiatives are achieved

e Ensuring that training dollars are distributed fairly and
equitably throughout the organisation

¢ Providing opportunities for employees to develop
career paths

We actively encourage our employees to undertake study
to enhance their knowledge and skills. As part of the
training guidelines, Council contributes to the financial cost
of approved courses.




our people
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Rural Serlvicés_ Trainee Kahlj-Boyceiinspects a
wild dog fence and Road Construction trainee
“'Sean Beckman learns about potholés.
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Traineeships

We employed three trainees who will be with us for a
period of 12 months. During their term they complete a
Certificate in their relevant field.

Funding was accessed through Skilling Queenslanders
for Work — First Start Program. Our trainee program
offers school leavers and others an opportunity to gain
qualifications and on the job training. The three traineeships
are:

e Business Administration
e Rural Lands
e Road Construction
We also have one school-based traineeship. The trainee
works two days per week while completing Year 11 and 12
and will achieve a Certificate Il in Business Administration at
the end of their senior years.

Staff Breakfasts

Our CEO introduced Staff Breakfasts to get our entire
workforce and elected members together at least once a
quarter. The Breakfasts provide an opportunity for all staff
and elected members to come together as one team.

Important information and announcements are shared
including budgets, drug and alcohol policy, awards and new
executive team.

our volunteers

Our Visitor Information Centre (VIC) has 22 registered
volunteers. The Visitor Information Centre relies on volunteers
to cover weekends and fill in with staff leave. Our Volunteers are
very valuable to the operation of the VIC. Their duties range from

| pricing, customer service and daily running of the information
centre on weekends.

Our volunteers can sometimes volunteer from 150 hours to 210
hours a year. This may vary depending on the year and the visitor
statistics.




workplace health & safety

We are committed to providing a workplace that is safe
and without risk to the health and safety of all employees,
contractors, volunteers, work-experience students, visitors
and members of the public. We recognise the importance
of developing and maintaining healthy and safe working
conditions in all workplaces and the importance of
keeping the work health and safety practices in these
workplaces under constant review. A renewed focus
has been placed on Workplace Health & Safety (WH&S)
following an external audit in September 2016. To assist in
meeting these requirements we have developed a safety
management system known as “Safeplan”.

The WH&S Management System Plan aims to provide
overall actions for reducing workplace injury and disease
and to ensure that Balonne Shire Council employees,
contractors, volunteers and visitors are free from hazards
and risks to their wellbeing. The purpose of the WH&S Plan
is to set out the strategic framework to support the WH&S
Management System specifically aimed at identifying
actions that need to be undertaken over the year. The
future direction of WH&S within Balonne Shire Council
will be by following the WH&S Plan and the associated
Monthly Action Plans (MAPs). The MAPs are fundamental
actions that have been recognised in the WH&S Plan to be
conducted each month over a biannual cycle.

Take 5 and Toolbox Talks have also been introduced as
a simple and effective way to increase safety awareness
across the workforce. The Take 5 concept involves staff
taking five minutes to think about the job and the potential
workplace hazards. A Health and Safety Committee has
been established and meet every three months. This
committee is comprised of management representatives
and health and safety representatives, other Council
officers and specialists can be called in if required.

An external Workplace Health and Safety Audit was

conducted in February 2017 on Council’s workplace health

Safety Advisor Ben Gardiner, Director
Finance & Corporate Services Michelle
Clarke receive the Bronze Award from JLTA
South West Queensland Regional Risk
Coordinator Alan Balloch.

our people

and safety management system which saw Balonne Shire
Council achieve a score of 70.7%. This score enabled us to
receive a Bronze Award in the LGW scheme.

WHS Training and Staff Induction Training continues
to underpin our safety initiatives with the majority of
employees undertaking work health and safety training or
induction through the year. Training was conducted for first
aid, confined space entry, traffic management, working
at heights, fire safety and a range of other requirements.
100% of new staff received an induction to Council,
providing a platform in further training and safe work
practices. Training is undertaken by use of internal and
external professionally qualified trainers.

Workplace Incidents and Injuries Statistics relating to
incidents and injuries during the 2013/14, 2014/15 and
2015/16 financial years are as follows:

Injury 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

Strain/sprain 9 7 1 3
Foreign body 1 0 0 6
Bruise 2 1 0 3
Cuts 1 1 1 2
Burns/scalds 0 2 0 1
Skin 0 0 0 1
irritation
Weld flash 0 0 1 0
Puncture 2 1 0 0
Poisoning 1 0 0 0
Fracture 1 0 0 0

drug & alcohol policy

Council introduced a Drug and Alcohol Policy in October
2016. Information sessions were held for all staff in
December 2016 and random testing was conducted in
February 2017. Our Community Safety
Committee worked with the Australian
Army to deliver information sessions
on 31 May, 2017, to our community on
how to implement a Drug and Alcohol
Policy into the workplace.

employee consultation

A staff survey was completed in
March 2017 with a 65% response rate.
The overall result was a significant
improvement in the morale and
satisfaction of our employees. Despite
the improved result our Senior
Leadership Group are committed to
working in consultation with Line
Managers and Supervisors to address
employee concerns and to be an
employer of choice.

employee assistance
program

We offer an Employee Assistance
Program in partnership with Assure
Programs providing employees with a
counselling support service.

17
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our reputation

We have a range of governance functions that
demonstrate openness, transparency and accountability
to ensure we continuously improve our reputation in the
community.

Performance Monitoring and

Reporting Performance

The Operational Plan 2016/17 formed the basis of our
quarterly performance reporting. These reports include
progress on the implementation of our Corporate and
Operational plans and financial reporting of budget
performance.

The primary tool for external accountability is the annual
report. This document is prepared annually to show the
community and interested stakeholders how successful
Council has been in achieving the strategic goals and
objectives outlined in the corporate plan.

The report contains detailed financial and non-financial
information about Council’s activities and performance.
See pages 21-38

Administrative Action Complaints

Council’s General Complaints Process was audited
by the Queensland Ombudsman in June 2016. All
recommendations were implemented to the Ombudsman’s
satisfaction by April 2017. Council treats complaints
seriously and has implemented a revised policy and
procedure.

Council resolved two external review complaints to the
satisfaction of the Queensland Ombudsman in 2016/17.

No. of complaints | No. of complaints | No. of
received resolved complaints

outstanding
10 9 1*

* There is one resolved Administration Action Complaint carried over
from 2016/17 financial year. This outstanding complaint is due to
ongoing investigation and a range of new information received from

the complainants.

A majority of complaints received by council related to its
procurement arrangements.

shire Council

Council engaged the services of Mclnnes Wilson
Solicitors to complete a review/investigation of two of
the complaints to improve transparency and independent
review.

The complaints were not substantiated on the balance
of probabilities. All recommendations in the independent
report have been implemented to improve council’s
procurement and complaint processes.

Right to Information (RTI)

Under Queensland’s Right to Information Act 2009 and
Information Privacy Act 2009, members of the community
are able to apply for access to documents held by Council
(subject to statutory exemptions).

The Acts also allow members of the community to apply
for and make amendments to be made to documents
concerning their personal affairs, where it is believed
the information is incomplete, out-of-date, inaccurate or
misleading.

The Governance section receives and processes
all Council’s Right to Information and Information
Privacy requests. In 2016/17 three Information Privacy
applications were under this process for CCTV footage.

One Information Privacy complaint for breach of
confidentiality was investigated and finalised.



our reputation

Audit Committee

Our Audit Committee operates in accordance with
the Local Government Act 2009 (the Act), the Local
Government Regulation 2012 (the Regulation) and the
Audit Committee Terms of Reference. The committee met
three times during the 2016/17 financial year.

The Audit Committee reports directly to Council and is
composed of three voting members. At 30 June, 2017,
the Audit Committee membership comprised: Mayor
Richard Marsh, Cr Fiona Gaske (Chair) and Jason Quinnell
(Independent Member).

The Chief Executive Officer, Director Finance & Corporate
Services, Manager Financial Sustainability and Council’s
Internal Auditor together with representatives of
Queensland Auditor’s Office attend committee meetings
as standing invitees. Council’s External Auditor has also
attended to provide an overview of our External Audit
Plan.

Audit Activities 2016/17

Number of meetings held 3
Internal Audit Reports reviewed 1
External Audit Reports reviewed 1

Council will have an independent audit chair in 2017/18
as recommended by its external auditors.

Internal Audit

During the 2016/2017 year two onsite visits to council
premises were undertaken in December 2016 and March
2017. The following internal audit work was completed or
commenced:

e An Audit Committee teleconference was held on 26
October, 2016, and an onsite Audit Committee meeting
was held on 30 March, 2017.

e Adetailed review of controls and procedures relating
of Floating Plant and Loose Tools (including Attractive and
Portable Items) was undertaken during the October 2016
visit with recommendations being made for improvements
in controls and efficiency of operation.

Administration Trainee Caleb Espie.

e During the October 2016 site visit a general review of
works operations including purchasing & procurement,
contracting arrangements, stores, Workplace Health
& Safety and workflow planning was undertaken. This
work did not involve an in depth review of each specific
function but rather an overview of works as a whole
and the interaction between the various functions of
Council. Detailed observations were made to council and
recommendations for improvement across the works area
were made.

® At the site visit in March 2017 a follow up of Council
actions taken in the works area was undertaken with
discussions with key personnel.

¢ In addition work commenced on a review of Human
Resources controls and procedures and a review of Plant
Hire Rates and the interaction with QRA plant hire rates
allowances etc.

All recommendations from Internal Audit are monitored
by management and reported to the Audit Committee on a
quarterly basis.

Risk Management

Our insurer Jardine Lloyd Thompson assisted Council to
develop an Enterprise Risk Management Framework.

The ERM was developed in compliance with ISO
31000:2009 Risk Management — Principles and Guidelines.

The Framework was presented to the Audit Committee in
June 2017 and adopted by Council in July 2017.

A high priority for Council in 2017/18 and beyond will be
implementing the Enterprise Risk Management Framework
and completing our risk registers.

Our Fraud Risk Register and Management Plan was
developed in response to the Queensland Auditor
General’s report Fraud Management in Local Government
(Report 19: 2014-15). It was received by the Audit
Committee in September 2016. Our Corruption and Fraud
Policy (adopted April 2016) complement the risk register
and control plans.

A series of Fraud Awareness workshops were held with 65
employees in February 2017.

19
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our reputation

The Jack Taylor Weir in St George during the 2011 flood.

St George Levee Bank

There is no doubt that the St George Levee Bank has
received mixed reactions from our community.

Many will recall the devastating impact that the 2010 to
2014 floods had on our community. In response to these
events, Council constructed the levee to deal with future
devastating flooding impacts from and surrounding the
Balonne River.

Given the level of damage that was sustained as a result
of the floods during that time period, Council constructed
the levee on an urgent basis to protect the community and
to avoid sustaining further damage and loss during the
next significant weather event.

It is acknowledged that some time has passed, however
Council is now taking the final steps to formalise the
agreements with landowners where the levee has been
constructed.

During 2016/17 council has worked with the St George
Levee Bank Advisory Committee and completed the
following:

¢ Independent Technical Review of the Levee Bank as
constructed - The Technical Review report provided by
GHD in December 2016 concluded that the levee generally
meets current Queensland Levee Guidelines. A range of
recommendations were made (in the report) that can be
completed as part of the expected ongoing maintenance
activities for the levee.

¢ Independent Flood Model Review in St George -
GHD were also engaged to review the flood model data
developed prior to and following construction of the
levee bank. The review concluded that the modelling is
suitable and appropriate for the intended use. There were
no findings that significantly impact on model results or
conclusions and there was no reason to refine or change
models unless new calibration data is available.

e During 2016/17 financial year council expended
approximately $50,000 on these reviews and
approximately $135,000 on Levee Bank Maintenance.
Significant legal fees have also been incurred by council
in an attempt to finalise Easement Agreements with
landholders.
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Our performance is measured against what we said we
would do in our four-year Corporate Plan 2013 to 2018 and
one-year Operational Plan 2016-17.

This includes the delivery of projects, programs, tasks and
performance measures as well as progress towards four year
term achievements.

The report is presented in the five key program areas:

Wise Planning and Design
Strong & Resilient Communities
Prosperity for All

River Country Stewardship
Inclusive and Ethical Governance




our partnerships

Deputy Mayor Fiona Gaske and Mayor Richard Marsh amid a sea of Royal Military College of Duntroon
trainees who held training exercises in St George in May.




wise planning & design

We will plan and develop a well-connected network of vital
community hubs which preserve the distinctive character,
heritage and atmosphere of local communities.

We will maintain and develop the necessary infrastructure
to support and protect both townships and productive river
country.

We will plan for safe, liveable communities, which cater for
residents and the travelling public.

Community Planning

To provide a framework to manage growth whilst
encouraging a sense of community pride, belonging
and well-being.

Building & Plumbing Services

To provide appropriate certification services for
building work within the Shire.

Development Assessment

To provide appropriate controls to ensure and
encourage balanced quality development of the
Shire and protection of the environment.

Roads & Transport

To provide efficient and effective transport and
drainage infrastructure.

Water & Waste Water

To provide efficient safe water supplies and
environmentally sound waste water disposal 23
systems.




wise planning & design

Highlights and achievements

* 26 Building Applications valued at $2,125,061
approved. Compared to last year this is slightly lower
in the number and value of applications. 2015/16 — 30
building applications valued at $2,665,000.

e Eight (8) Pool Safety Inspections. Council’s
Environmental Health officer obtained qualification as
a Pool Safety Inspector on 29 November 2016, four (4)
pool safety inspections and have been conducted around
Balonne Shire Council Area with subsequent certificates
issued.

¢ Initial discussions/preliminary work has occurred
between BSC and Department of Infrastructure, Local
Government and Planning (DILGP) regarding the drafting
of the new Balonne Shire Council Planning Scheme which
is part of the template/pilot scheme program. Formal
drafting has not commenced yet.

e 10 Planning Applications approved - including:

» St George Kindergarten Development: will
provide additional services by way of being able to
accommodate more children and potentially provide
more jobs to the community. Construction has not
yet started.

» Vanderfields Development: will provide
additional services and jobs to the community and
shows Vanderfields commitment to reinvest in St
George. Construction is now well under way on the
extension.

» Cattle Feedlot Development: The development
contributes to the agricultural produce and
diversity around Balonne Shire. The use has not yet
commenced.

» Solar Farm Development: The development is
the first of its nature for commercial purposes and
shows Council’s commitment to encourage renewable
energy. The use has not yet commenced.

e Bollon and Hebel landfill tenure changes: A deed
of grant Balonne Shire to obtain formal ownership of the
landfills was finalised on 3 July 2017.

e CAMMS Car Rally Event (pictured bottom): The event
took place on 5-7 May 2017 and attracted an influx of
spectators and participators providing economic benefit
offsets as a result. The local representative of the event
(Trent Challenger) informed Council of the event’s success
and intention to work with Council in organising future
events.

¢ Dirranbandi Long
Distance Coach Stop
construction (right).

e Kooroon Road
gravel resheeting.

e Salmon Bypass
widening.

e Honeymah Lane
gravel resheeting.

e Powrunna Road
gravel resheeting.

¢ Bollon-
Dirranbandi Road
bitumen seal upgrades.

e Kirby Street,
Dirranbandi, kerb and
channelling and road
reconstruction.

e Victoria Street to
Turvey Court footpath
construction.

e Stormwater upgrades at Dirranbandi.
e Water main replacement in Mungindi and St George.

* Woolerina Road gravel resheeting and floodway
replacement at Wallam Creek.




wise planning & design

2016/17 Targets
Performance Measure Annual Target  Actual
Forward looking initiatives/programs instigated >> 4 5
Road user Request for Action completed in acceptable timeframes within budget >>90% 75%
constraints
Compliance with Council’s Customer Service Standards for urban water supplies >>90% 75%
Percentage of Operational Projects completed within budget and on time >>90% 70%
Percentage of Capital Projects completed within budget and on time >>90% 70%

Into the Future
» Reconstruction and bitumen sealing works at Bollon-Dirranbandi Road

» Gravel resheeting of Secret Plains, Narine, Chelmer, Ballandool, Gunnindaddy, Cubbie, Middle and Hoolavale
Roads

» Upgrades to Ballangarry Bridge approaches

v

» Kerb and channelling at Murchison, Andrew and Arthur Streets and Kenny Lane, St George

» Murchison Street stormwater upgrades

» Completion of the St George Sewerage Treatment Plant Effluent Reuse project

» Water main replacement at Arthur, Barlee Streets, Church, Arthur and Henry Streets

» Bollon Long Distance Coach Stop construction

» Dirranbandi Water Treatment Plant upgrades 25



strong & resilient communities




strong & resilient communities

Our health, wellbeing, creativity and strong community
spirit will be supported, our cultural heritage preserved and
celebrated and our values of caring and respect will extend to
people of all ages, cultures, abilities and needs.

Community Lifestyle SO s

el

R

To foster community pride and social interaction for all groups within our
community with access to well serviced community hubs and facilities.

Cultural Activities

To promote and cater for activities that support cultural, indigenous and
multi- cultural history preservation, arts and other pursuits that foster the
growth of local arts and culture.

Community Safety

To facilitate community safety and crime prevention strategies.

Public Health

To implement policies and programs to maintain an appropriate level of
public health standards within the Shire.

Parks and Recreation

To maintain parks, open spaces, recreational and sporting facilities for the
enjoyment an well-being of the community.

Disaster Management

To facilitate the development of disaster mitigation strategies and provide
effective disaster and emergency planning and response services in
conjunction with the community and emergency service organisations.




strong & resilient communities

Highlights and achievements
e Dirranbandi swimming pool surface upgrade.
¢ Air-conditioning installation at Dirranbandi and Hebel community halls.
e St George pool kiosk and roof refurbishment.
¢ Bollon Civic Centre wooden floor sanding and recoating.
¢ Hebel Showground rodeo arena fencing replacement.
e Cavanough Park upgrade.

e Power upgrade works at Dirranbandi Showground.

¢ Balonne Shire Council together with DAF were able to work together to provide valuable assistance in helping a local
grazing family when they experience an Anthrax breakout.

2016/17 Targets

Performance Measure Annual Target  Actual
Programs and/or enhancements to community facilities to increase community >>12 10
participation and inclusion

Cultural activities/initiatives implemented and/or supported >>12 8

Proactive public health initiatives implemented >>10 3

Percentage of Operational Projects completed within budget and on time >>90% 80%

Percentage of Capital Projects completed within budget and on time >>90% 75%
Into the Future » Hebel Library upgrade

» St George River Foreshore footpath and disabled

» Bollon flood mitigation levee extension . .
ramp installation

v

» Artesian spa construction at St George Pool
P g » Dirranbandi Rail and River Precinct Stage 1

Thallon Hall and Library upgrades
7 v upg » St George Showground Apex Bar refurbishment
» Bollon Civic Centre air-conditioning and exterior

28 painting » Rowden Park grandstand refurbishment



Together we will work to build a strong and more diverse
economic base for the Shire, capitalising on opportunities
around tourism, transport, resources and value adding.

We will work to attract the labour and skilled people we
need and provide opportunities to encourage people to settle |
here. 4

We will support excellent education and training, to
encourage young people to stay and build their future in
Balonne.

Tourism

To showcase the Shire’s attributes and
promote the district as an ideal tourism
destination enhancing opportunities for
tourism development.

Economic Development

To foster a vibrant economic environment
which facilitates the development of
sustainable opportunities and business
development.

Commercial Services

To undertake commercial works within
the scope of Council’s expertise in an 29
efficient and cost effective manner.




prosperity for all

Highlights and achievements

e 50% participant increase for the Yellowbelly Festival
held at the St George Showgrounds at the end of June

e New Tourist Information Shelters were installed for St
George and Hebel

¢ New Town Entry Signage was developed and delivered
to the St George Depot — to be installed in 2017/18.

* |Increased visitation to the Shire — 14,440 total visitors
for 2016-17

e Update of Travellers Guide for the Balonne Shire region
¢ Development of new town maps for the Shire

e Support South West Regional Economic Development
(SWRED) in Orienting Tourism to Businesses

e Development of the New Shire Entry Signage

e Maintain and support the Yellowbelly Festival and
other events

e Development and Implementation of a Shire
Recreational Vehicle (RV) and Freedom Camping Strategy

* Increase Volunteers programs and support at the
Visitor Information Centre

¢ Continue Road Management Performance Contract for
the Department of Transport and Main Roads;

e Completion of works for the Department of Transport
and Main Roads: Carnarvon Highway widening north of St
George (SWTD 1104 Phase 2).

~

2016/17 Targets

Performance Measure Annual Target  Actual
New businesses established within Balonne Shire >>10 10
Business/workforce development initiatives undertaken >> 10 9
Increased visitations (tourist/business/commercial) year on year >>10% 3.6%
Percentage of Operational Projects completed within budget and on time >>90% 85%
Percentage of Capital Projects completed within budget and on time >>90% 85%

Into the Future

» Continue Road Management Performance Contract for the Department of Transport and Main Roads



river country stewardship

The health of our river system and groundwater will
be protected, our diverse natural environment, with an
abundance of native flora and fauna and our rich agricultural
lands will thrive through our commitment to sustainable
farming practises and caring for the environment.

Environmental Management

To provide a level of environmental
stewardship to protect our natural
environment and contribute to the
environmental health and well-being of the
community.

Waste Management

To provide efficient, effective and
environmentally sensitive waste collection
and/or disposal services.

Rural Services

To provide effective and efficient management
of stock routes, animal pests and declared
weed pests to support our Shires’ agricultural
base.
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river country stewardship

Highlights and achievements

Environmental Management

Queensland Arbovirus Sentinel Surveillance system -
uses CO? baited passive box traps allowing surveillance in
remote areas for Murray Valley Encephalitis Virus (MVEV),
West Nile Virus Kunjin subtype (WNVKUN), Japanese
Encephalitis Virus (JEV) as well as Ross River (RRV) and
Barmah Forest (BFV) viruses.

Surveillance was undertaken at nine locations throughout
Queensland from 16 January to 5 June 2017 with sampling
undertaken fortnightly.

Sites located at Weipa, Mapoon and Cooktown on Cape
York Peninsular, Normanton and Karumba in the Gulf of
Carpentaria, Mt Isa in the North West, Longreach and
Emerald in the Central West and St George in the South
West.

Data sharing arrangements with Northern Australia
Quarantine Strategy enable sharing of surveillance results
from three surveillance sites in the National Arbovirus
Mapping Program.

QHealth GAT Program - Balonne Shire Council together
with the Darling Downs Public Health Unit continue to
work together in relation to mosquito surveillance, in
particular for container breeding mosquitoes

The aim is to improve knowledge of where Aedes aegypti
is located within our area, and undertake risk assessment
of disease. Monitoring also ensures there has not been an
invasion of Aedes albopictus on the main land.

Aedes aegypti has been found in a number of towns
within our region, in the South Burnett and the South
West. It is important regular surveillance is conducted to
identify areas of potential for disease transmission. Where
Aedes aegypti is found, it is important ongoing surveillance
is conducted to determine the extent of population,
current distribution.

Advantages for surveillance programs include:
e Early warning system for exotic mosquito/disease
incursion
e Provide baseline information on population(s)

¢ |dentify areas of high risk (ie. tyre yards) and areas
where action is needed to target risk reduction

¢ Monitor efficacy of control operations

¢ Risk management of disease for the community
(dengue, chikungunya & Zika virus)

e Ability to contain outbreaks prior to spread.

Yard surveys are also conducted where larvae are
collected for identification. Advantages of yard surveys
include:

¢ Identification of mosquito breeding sites found within
community
¢ |dentifying mosquito hot spots within the township
The disadvantages of yard surveys include:
e itisaslow process
e itis reliant on timing of survey (i.e rain events),
e itis reliant on operator skills,

o offers limited assessment of cryptic sites (eg. Rainwater
tanks, roof gutters, drain sumps), and

¢ time intensive for short periods of time.

Trapping is a great way to conduct mosquito surveillance
without Local Governments investing a large amount of

time and workforce

Plant a Tree Day - The Balonne Shire Council provided
all schools and kindergartens with a $100 voucher to help
with the planting of trees and shrubs for Schools Plan a
Tree Day. Council also conducted a Plant a Tree Day at the
Library during story time. Many little people helped plant
two new pot plants for Sheree our wonderful Librarian.

Clean Up Australia - Balonne Shire Council together
with QMDC conducted a Roadside Clean Up on Clean Up
Australia Day. The small but enthusiastic crew cleaned up
2km on both sides of the Carnarvon Highway (south).

New Waste Collection Service for Balonne Shire - A
recent community survey highlighted recycling as a high
priority for our residents. Council moved to a two-bin
system, from July 1 this year. Under the two-bin system
(below), residents will have a 240L bin for general waste
collected weekly, and a 240L bin for recycling collected
fortnightly. Community consultation was held at all district
shows prior to the final decision being adopted by Council.

EiRISARasaTA TR ETE:

Annual Shire Clean Up - Balonne Shire Council conducted
its Annual shire Clean Up during March 2017 to be part
of the Clean Up Australia campaign. All residents of St
George, Thallon, Dirranbandi, Hebel and Bollon were able
to utilize this service. A total of 24 truckloads of green-
waste, 7 general waste, 5 scrap metal and 13 old cars were
taken from there residents

Roadside Clean Up - lllegal litter - The South West
Region Roadside Litter Prevention Project was delivered
in partnership with five other Councils and the QMDC.
In 2016 the installation of the current roadside signage
was delivered and erected from corflute material and is
now ready for replacement. New permanent signage has
been supplied by QMDC for all road-rest stops within the
Shire. Approval for this sighage needs to be obtained from
Department of Transport and Main Roads.



river country stewardship
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Rural Services

¢ No Borders No Boundaries Phase 2 completed. Project
included wild dog trapping (and trapper mentoring), data
collection, and feral pig aerial shooting campaigns and
other controls over four Shires — Goondiwindi, Maranoa,
Western Downs and Balonne.

e 313 wild dog scalps brought into the Balonne Shire
under the current bounty of $100 in 2016/17; increased
from 269 scalps in 2015/16.

¢ In partnership with Maranoa Regional Council, BSC
has secured funding ($630,000) for the Barrier Fence to
the Border Collaborative Area Management Project —the
project will target specific areas in both Councils for the
construction of cluster fencing in the 2018 and 2019 years.

¢ As well as funding ($214,000) for targeted monitoring,
aerial baiting, and trapping activities across both Council
areas in the 2017/18 and 2018/19 years.

e Successful eradication of Velvety Tree pair and African
Boxthorn infestations on the Moonie and Canarvon
Highways. Funded by DTMR under Element 5 road reserves
weed management. Completed by Balonne Shire Councils
RMPC crew and the QMDC Aboriginal Ranger unit. Total
budget $70,000.

¢ Booligar Coral Cactus Biocontrol release (Cochineal)
successful, 2 x monitoring days concluded with drone
mapping — ongoing project for 2017/2018 financial year.
This included the purchase of a phantom 4 drone for Rural
Services weed mapping.

e o
s

e Successful completion of capital works stock route
water point night yards. Water facilities include “Horse
Creek, The Glear, Bandy Andy and Buffel Park”. Total
funding $30,000.

¢ Welcome to our new Rural Services trainee Kahli
Boyce who commenced work with the Balonne Shire
Council on 27 March, 2017.

e 2 x coordinated baiting campaigns reasonably
successful with 9000kg of bait meat being placed.

e Firebreak renewals on the Bollon — St George stock
route network.

e Drover activity limited due to ongoing drought
conditions with four drovers passing through the Shire
during the reporting period.

e Australian Army assistance (7 CSSB Recovery Unit)
to remove car bodies from the Balonne Shire stock route
network over the reporting period — this has saved Council
an estimated $80,000 for removal of at least 32 car bodies.
Well done and thank you to the Australian Army.

¢ Rural Services Team also incorporates Compliance
(Local Laws) as of November 2016, and is led by Karl
Hempstead.

e During the reporting period there was a successful
microchip clinic in May 2017 and Dangerous Dog training
in Rockhampton.

¢ Infrastructure and plant upgrades included purchase
of new local laws patrol vehicle and improvements to the
dog pound.
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river country stewardship

2016/17 Targets

Performance Measure

Annual Target  Actual

Customer requests responded to within defined timeframes >>90% 92.5%
Kerbside waste and recycling bins collected as scheduled >>100% 98.5%
Percentage of Operational Projects completed within budget and on time >>90% 100%
Percentage of Capital Projects completed within budget and on time >>90% 100%

Into the Future

» Council will continue to deliver and refine the new Kerbside recycling and collection service in partnership with
JJ Richards

» Renewal and maintenance of stock routes infrastructure will continue as Council delivers improvements funded
through State Programs

» Aerial Baiting programs and improved vertebrate pest monitoring will be incorporated into Councils 1080
campaigns in 17/18 and 18/19 financial years with funding from the Queensland Feral Pest Initiative

» Council is working in partnership with Maranoa Regional Council to deliver $660,000 worth of support to eligible
“Cluster Fencing” projects across both Shires in the 2017/18 financial year

» Targeted weed control programs will continue across the shire, utilising Council resources, as well as funding
from external agencies such as Dept Main Roads Element 5, and QMDC.

.~
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Our team held a
microchipping clinic
in June.




inclusive & ethical governance
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Meaningful involvement by community, quality leadership
at all levels and a spirit of partnership between the
community and Council which will enrich residents’
participation in local decision making to achieve the
community’s Balonne 2025 vision and goals.

Corpo rate Governance CEO Matthew Magin, Mayor Richard Mar FDeputy Pii
Joyce, Deputy Mayor Fiona Gaske and Memb

To provide effective organisational
leadership through strategic
planning, accountability and ethical
standards of practice.

Financial Management

To ensure the long-term viability of
the Shire and provide accountability
in financial management.

Customer Service

To provide efficient and effective
customer service to all internal

and external customers within the
resource limitations and community
expectations.
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inclusive & ethical governance

Strategy assisted us in attracting $50,000 through the
Telstra Innovation Development Fund.

Highlights and achievements
Stores Review

We committed to undertake a detailed review of our
stores operation to assess the feasibility of maintaining
such an operation, and whether alternative procurement
arrangements could be established which are more
efficient and effective.

We engaged an independent experienced storeperson
to undertake a review of the current stores operation,
including stores ordering, cataloguing, maintenance and
issuing procedures and methodology.

Local Buy Pty Ltd was engaged to assist us to introduce
contemporary procurement activities involving direct
purchases from local suppliers (where available) and a
“just-in-time” delivery for larger materials and supplies.

It is estimated we will save $1.352 million over 10 years
by moving to the new procurement arrangements.

Related Parties

AASB1124 Related Party Disclosures requires the
disclosure of relevant additional information in the
Council’s Annual Financial Statements for 2016/17 financial
year.

Council used the Governance Institute of Australia’s
best practice guide for consideration of related party
transactions to determine if reporting was required.
Council adopted its Related Parties Policy on 23 February,
2017, and has nominated all of its Councillors and
Executive staff as Key Management Personnel.

Vendor Panel — Purchasing Policy Review

We received numerous complaints about our purchasing
and procurement processes in Quarter 1 and 2 of 2016/17.

A range of initiatives were introduced to address the
concerns of contractors and ensure best value for Council.

With the assistance from Local Buy Pty Ltd a public
meeting was held on 7 February, 2017, for local
contractors. Shortly after this meeting we advertised for a
Preferred Supplier Arrangement for Wet and Dry Plant Hire
and introduced Vendor Panel to our staff.

We thank Local Buy Pty Ltd and Sarah Holt from the
Department of State Development who assisted our
local suppliers to register with Vendor Panel. We now
have a system that has reduced complaints and provides
transparency and accountability for our procurement
arrangements.

Information Communications & Technology Strategy

Council adopted its ICT Strategy on 15 June, 2017. The
Strategy was developed with The Frame Group and will
guide the ICT governance arrangements over the next five
years.

It aims to improve our service delivery to the community
and provide direction for the future development of
technological solutions.

In 2016/17 our computer replacement program included
replacement of two computers, three laptops and
installation of Windows 10 and an Admin Multi-Function
Printer.

CCTV Strategy

Council’s Community Safety Committee were instrumental
in a CCTV Strategy being developed to provide a four-year
plan for deterring crime and increasing public safety. The

Works are expected to commence in Quarter 2 of
2017/18 with additional funding likely.

Key partners in the strategy include:

Queensland Police Service

Department of Transport & Main Roads
Queensland Health

Care Balonne

Telstra

Ergon Energy

Council’s CCTV cameras are situated in positions to
help deter crime and increase public safety.




inclusive & ethical governance
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xegories. This i due 1o wame rlepeyen valaations skyrocketing by uo to
IO0% increase. The application of the 30% limitation means these ratepayess do not pay Mo
than 30% more iy d¥ereetial genersl rates 1Rea They &id st year
Other charges on your Rate Notice may Include:
Water

A regidencs in 5 George will B2 charged 98 uniti and have an entilemant of 293
kiiofitres, irranbandi will also be charped 92 uress and have an entitlement of 380
klsiines, Ay wates uned in eacetd of 1his ensitlement will be charged proe

Thee difference in (he satidemnent is due to St George hasing & dusl water supply,

Thallon, Hebed and Bolion will be charged 98 units and be entitled bo 280 kilolires,
whilst Mungindi i charged an Access Charge and are chamged coemumpsion

Excess Water/Consumption Charges
Acharpe for asng e than your gntalemaent, of for Musgingi resdents it & 3 change for their

water coraumption E

Waste Water - Applicable 6 % George, rrankandi and Bolicn
Cheaniabng - Your washe remowal service,

Domestic Animal Management Levy - 1o assist with the provision of
Anirmal Cortrol tenvites

Feral Andmal Management Levy - To siust with 1he proviion af Feral
Arpmnal senaces

Enir

] Lewy = Toassist with conts for the operanian of land®ils

Queensland Emergency Management Levy - A Sate Gowemmaent
Change for proveson of Emergency Serdied

o

If pou hove any questions about your rate notice or water notice,

please contact Council on 4620 B8ES.

Rates Review

The Department of Natural Resources and Mines (DNRM)
released land values on 21 October, 2016, resulting in
Balonne Shire land vlaues increasing overall by 17 per cent
since the last valuation in 2015.

These changes impacted shire property owners from 1
July, 2017, when rates were issued.

The overall result was not consistent across or within
property ownership categories.

In particular, overall urban centres have decreased
significantly (approximately 34%) and the rural
property market has experienced significant increases
(approximately 32%).

To address this significant variance we undertook
extensive work with an external consultant and engaged
an experienced local government financial accountant
to review our rate model and make recommendations to
Council to reduce the impact on our ratepayers.

To minimise the impact on individual landholders Council
adopted the following strategies:

e A 9% reduction in the rate in the dollar for all rating
categories.

e The rate in the dollar is applied to the land valuation
to determine the amount of the differential general rate
you pay.

* A 2% increase for water and sewerage.

¢ Anincrease of $94.10 per annum for the new two-bin
waste service and to achieve full cost recovery.

¢ No increase in the minimum general rate.*

¢ We will apply a limitation on the increase of general
rates under Section 116 of the Local Government
Regulation 2012. The limitation of 30% has been applied to
Differential Rating Categories 60, 61, 63, 69-73, 76 and 79.

¢ We will continue to issue two six-monthly rates
notices.

Improved customer service

We have improved our customer service through a variety
of methods such as improving information on our website.

Our team worked with the Local Government of
Association Queensland to produce a fresh new website
this financial year. The new site is easy to navigate and
provides all the latest news and advices from Council to
our community.

Sessions 38,938 39,675
Unique Users 19,958 21,616
Page Views 97,915 105,726

We have also increased our use of social media to reach
our residents and visitors.

ocial Media 5 of Followe 0 of Eollowe
Platio 0 6 016
Facebook 1337 1574
Twitter 30 74

Council also promotes the use of the free mobile phone
application Snap Send Solve by residents. This lets people
report issues and provide feedback to us via their mobile
phones. All reports from Snap Send Solve are sent from the
app using your email address. You can take a picture and it
will record the GPS co-ordinates and send us an email.

Once received the reports are registered into our service
request system, customers receive an acknowledgement
and reference number and our team action the request
and respond to you.
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Service Requests implemented 150 . .
. . i Service Request Completion Rate
Council had not collected or utilised the service request

information available from our electronic document

management system until November 2016. 120
The graph (right) shows that Council received 502
service requests from 1 January to 30 June, 2017, and our
response rate. Our response rate is continually improving.
We are also collecting information on the number of 90
compliments received
A majority of our requests relate to animal management
and road maintenance. €0
We also had a spike in that last half of 2016/17 relating to
waste management with the introduction of a new service 40
commencing 1 July, 2017.
30
Total documents .
Completed on time [J] I I I i’

Completed late .

January February March April May June

2016/17 Targets

Performance Measure Annual Target  Actual
Compliance with statutory and corporate requirements >>100% 100%
Audit recommendations implemented >>90% 80%
Percentage of Requests for Action completed within defined timeframes >>90% 80%
Percentage of Operational Projects completed within budget and on time >>90% 90%
Percentage of Capital Projects completed within budget and on time >>90% 100%

Into the Future

» Council is committed to continuous improvement and working with our key stakeholders to represent the
interests of our community at all levels of government.

» Council’s sustainability rating overall is considered low and the end result for 2016/17 was stronger than
originally forecast with additional funding received through Works For Queensland.

» A new Community Plan will be developed in 2017/18 that will provide the community with the opportunity
to provide input into the future of our Shire. Our Plan for the Community will be our Corporate Plan that sets the
38 strategic direction of our annual operational plans and budgets.



community financial report

Annual Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with professional and legislative requirements and hence are
technical documents. The purpose of the Community Financial Report is to present Financial Statements in a form more
easily understood by the community.

The Community Financial Report is based on the detailed financial information contained in the enclosed financial
statements for 1 July ,2016 to 30 June, 2017. A summary has been provided on the following financial matters:

¢ Where we get our money

e Where we spend our money

¢ What we are worth (Community Equity)

¢ What Council Owns and Owes (Assets and Liabilities)

Where we get our money

The total income for the 12 months to 30 June,
2017 was $27,966,000. This includes rates and
charges, grants and fees during the 12 months.
The capital income of $4,440,000 is mainly made
up from capital grants and subsidies.

Rates, levies & charges 40% .
Grants & subsidies 37% .
Sales revenue 18% .

Interest 2%
Fees & charges 1% .
Rental income 1% .
Other income 1% .

Where we spend our money

Total operational expenditure for the 12
months to 30 June, 2017 totalled $23,783,000.
This expenditure consisted of costs such as
electricity, insurance, salaries & wages, repairs
and maintenance and depreciation of community
assets. Council spent $6,060,000 on capital
purchases and capital improvements.

Operating
Expenditure

. Infrastructure Services 57%
. Community Lifestyle 11%
. Commercial Services 10%
Corporate Services 10%
. Economic Development 4%
. Rural Services 3%
. Planning, Development & Environment 3%
. Planning, Development & Environment 3%

Capital
Expenditure

. Transport Infrastructure 52%

. Water Supply 33%

. Plant & Equipment 8%
Buildings 3%

. Other Infrastructure 2%

. Urban Waste Water 1%

. Furniture & Fittings 0.98%

. Land 0.02%
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What we are worth
(community equity)

Balonne Shire Council’s net worth (Community
Equity), is made up of Investment in Capital
Assets, Reserves, Asset Revaluation Reserve and
Retained Surplus.

Asset Revaluation 70% .
Retained Surplus 17% .
Capital 13% .

What we owe and own

Our assets of $286,351,000 are made up of
investment in community assets such as roads,
buildings, water and sewer infrastructure as
well as cash, investments, receivables and
inventories.

Our liabilities of $5,677,000 comprise of
employee provisions, sundry creditors and
Queensland Treasury Corporation (QTC) loans.

. Property, plant & equipment 91%
Cash & investments 8%
. Receivables 1%
Inventories 0.5%
. Work in progress 0.5%

Borrowings 61% .
Provisions 32%
Payable 11.8% .

Other 0.2%

40



community financial report

Statement of Cash Flows

The cash flow statement is just like your bank statement. If you did a summary of your personal bank statements for 12
months it would be called a cash flow statement. This statement only reports on cash and shows:

e How much money we started the year with
e Where any incoming money came from

¢ Where any money was spent

e How much money we have left at the end of the year

2016/17 2015/16 2014/15 2013/14 2012/13
$,000 $,000 $,000 $,000 $,000
Opening cash balance 17,168 14,975 16,597 15,667 35,815
Net cash flow from operating activities 6290 6730 4342 618 -10,752
Net cash flow from investing activities -1601 -4307 -5694 -4898 -9098
(capital purchases)
New cash flow from financing activities -241 -230 -270 -300 -298
(loans)
Closing cash balance 21,616 17,168 14,975 16,597 15,667

As can be seen by the summary
above, we started the year with 40000
$17,068,045 and ended the year
with $21,615,628. 35000

Cash at Bank

This increase in cash held is 30000
partially related to early payment
of Commonwealth Financial 25000
Assistance Grants and Works for
Queensland Funding. 20000
To reach a strong financial 15000
position, Council must not only
have enough cash for its day- 10000

to-day operations and to fund
purchases of property, plant and 5000
equipment; repay interest and

principal payments on loans, it 0
must manage its cash to have 2016/17 2015/16 2014/15 2013/14 2012/13 2011/12
the capacity to meet its financial Cash at bank 21,616 17,168 14,975 16,597 15,667 35,815

commitments in the long term.

Operating Surplus Ratio

This ratio is a measure of Council’s ability to cover its operational costs and to have revenues available for capital funding
or other purposes.

The current ratio for Council is -27.08%. A generally accepted benchmark across local government is between 0% and
10%.

A review of average performance over the past four years demonstrated that Council has been within the required
targets demonstrating cash management practices and a sound liquidity position. The current ratio is below the
benchmark. This is due to increased depreciation costs as a result of works over recent years on roads damaged by
floods.

We will review service levels to ensure operational expenses will be sustainable in the longer term.

Asset Sustainability Ratio

This ratio is an approximation of the extent to which assets managed by a local government are being replaced as these
reach the end of their useful lives. It is calculated by measuring capital expenditure on renewal or replacement of assets,
divided by depreciation expense.

The accepted benchmark for local government is greater than 90%. Council’s ratio for 2016/17 is 29.29%, which is below 41
benchmark due to Council undertaking more upgrades and new works.
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Net Financial Liabilities Ratio

This ratio measures the percentage of Council’s total liabilities less current assets divided by total operating revenue
(excluding capital items). The accepted benchmark for local government is less than 60%. Council’s ratio for 2016/17 is
-57.89%.

Overall Financial Summary as at 30 June, 2017

Implementation of Long-Term Plan

We have continued to report on a periodic basis on the implementation of our Corporate Plan and Operational Plan.
Our Corporate Plan 2013-2018 and the Annual Operational Plan ensure our strategies are actioned at an operational
level.

Long-Term Financial Sustainablity

We are continuing to maintain an operating surplus in the 2016/17 financial year. Our team will continue to improve
and identify cost efficiencies through service level reviews and business process improvements to ensure the 2016/2017
financial year, and beyond, are sustainable and within the proposed goals of Council.




statutory information

The Local Government Act 2009 and the Local Government Regulation 2012 require a Local Government to publish
information on a number of areas within its Annual Report.

The following information is provided in accordance with these requirements.

Councillor Remuneration

The following pages detail the payments received and the basis on which Councillors are paid for performing their role
as a Councillor. Copies of the relevant polices including reimbursement of expenses are also included in Appendix 3.

Cr Richard Marsh (Mayor) 12 $99,637.92
Cr Fiona Gaske (Deputy Mayor) 12 $57,483.00
Cr Robert Paul 12 $49,818.96
Cr lan Todd 12 $49,818.96
Cr Samantha O’Toole 12 $49,818.96
Cr Scott Scriven 12 $49,818.96
Cr Robyn Fuhrmeister 12 $49,818.96
“Fees include base remuneration and meeting fees for other meetings attended as a representative of Council. Remuneration covers 2016/17
financial year as opposed to calendar year limits determined by the tribunal.

Council meetings and minutes

General Meetings of Council are held on the third Thursday of every month unless otherwise advertised. Unconfirmed
minutes are available for inspection no later than 10 days after each meeting and copies of confirmed minutes are
available for purchase at applicable photocopying charges. Council minutes may also be accessed via our website.

This year we have focused on improving the quality of reports presented for decision and those for information only.
The changes have resulted in improved agenda and time management.

The public have also expressed their appreciation of Council releasing agendas in full on our website ahead of Council
meetings and Council minutes within the statutory 10 working days.

Number of Ordinary Meetings Number of Special Meetings Total number of meetings

Council advisory committees
We have a range of Advisory Committees to assist in our decision-making processes:
* |ICT Steering Committee (Internal only)
¢ Audit Committee (includes external members of the community)
¢ Plant Committee (Internal only)
¢ Waste Advisory Committee (Internal only)
¢ St George Levee Bank Advisory Committee (includes external members of the community)
¢ South West Indigenous Cultural Precinct Advisory Committee (includes external members of the community)
e Community Safety Committee (includes external members of the community)
s 'ﬁi g K% SRR S M . Overseas travel
1 5 ¥ s ; A

No Councillors or employees of Council undertook
any overseas travel for the financial year 2016/17 in
accordance with Section 188 of the Local Government
Regulation 2012.

Councillor Conduct

In accordance with the Local Government Act 2009
Councillors are required to maintain appropriate
standards of conduct and performance. Details of
complaints and orders made under the Local Government
Act 2009 must be reported in our Annual Report.

In accordance with sections 180 and 181 of the Local
B Government Act 2009, there was one order to advise of
inappropriate conduct.

Mayor Cr Richard Marsh at the-Anzac
Day Dawn Service in St George. In accordance with section 176C(3)(a)(ii) or (b)(i) of the
: Local Government Act 2009, there were no complaints 43

34 ¥ { referred to the Mayor.

ey ®
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Local Government Remuneration &
Discipline Tribunal

The Tribunal is an independent body responsible
for deciding categories of local government and the
remuneration to be paid to mayors, deputy mayors and
councillors - according to the categories.

The Local Government Remuneration and Discipline
Tribunal also establishes processes for dealing with
allegations and makes determinations regarding
councillors’ conduct that is not in accordance with the
principles and obligations set out in the Act.

A report on the Tribunal’s remuneration determinations is
made to the Minister responsible for local government by
1 December annually.

The most recent report regarding remuneration for
local government councillors was published by the Local
Government Remuneration Tribunal in December 2016.

Councils do not need to pass a resolution to adopt
the levels prescribed by the Tribunal as they will apply
automatically in the absence of a resolution adopting a
lesser amount. Council will continue to apply the rate set
by the Tribunal from 1 July each financial year.

Delegations

Council may delegate its power to the Chief Executive
Officer. A delegations register is now in place and the CEO
delegations are reviewed annually as required by Section
257(4) of the Local Government Act.

Shareholder Delegates

In accordance with reporting requirements under the
Local Government Regulation 2012, Council did not
operate any corporate entities during the 2016/17 period.

Senior Management Remuneration
In accordance with Section 201 of the Local Government

Act 2009 details of remuneration packages that
are payable to the senior management of the local
government is to be stated in the Annual Report.

The senior management of a local government consists
of the Chief Executive Officer and all senior executive
employees of the local government.

Remuneration Package Range Senior Management

Employees
$0.00-$100,000 0
$100,001-5200,000 3
$200,001-$300,000 1
Tenders

Expressions of Interest prior to inviting Tenders

No expressions of interest were called prior to inviting
tenders in accordance with Section 228(3) & Section 228(5)
of the Local Government Regulation 2012.

Changes to Tenders

No tenderers were invited to change their tender to
take account of any changes to tender specification in
accordance with Section 228(7) of the Local Government
Regulation 2012.

Summary of Expenditure for
Particular Items

The following summary of expenditure is provided in
accordance with Section 189 of the Local Government
Regulation 2012.

Grants to Community Organisations

Free or concessional use of Council facilities - $6236.80.




Regional Arts Development Fund

statutory information

Total $25,226

Thallon Progress Association Wombat Sculpture $7703
Thallon Progress Association Thallon Silos Mural $4500
Dirranbandi Arts Council Public art $5798
Dirranbandi Arts Council Two-day workshop on restoring wood projects $405
Dirranbandi Arts Council Two-day upholstery workshop $870
T Zohl & J Lloyd Public Art - painting shopfront windows $3000
St George Art Group Two-day painting workshop $1430
St George State School Art in Community Garden $1520

Community Grants 2016/17

Total $14,645.80

Mungindi Show Society Council - Annual Show $500
Dirranbandi Progress Association CEO - Seniors Morning Tea $100
Balonne Ballet Association Council - Ballet Exams $500
St George State High School CEO - Year 12 Dux $100
Care Balonne Council - Multicultural Festival $200
Bollon Charity Rodeo Council - Bollon Campdraft $250
Mungindi Show Society Council - Mungindi Show $500
Various CEO - Gift Baskets - VIC $344.60
St George Fishing Club Council - Fishing Competition $250
St Patrick’s Fete Committee CEO - St Patrick’s Fete Colouring Competition $135
St Patrick’s Fete Committee CEO - Gift Basket - Megadraw $102.20
St George & District Chamber Christmas Carnival $500
St George State School OptiMinds $500
St George Aboriginal Housing Council - Donation Holiday Activities $440
Dirranbandi Progress Association Donation Australia Day $200
Mungindi Raft Races Council - Major Sponsorship $500
Care Balonne International Womens Day luncheon $500
Adrian Sortino Kapunda Fun Day $200
Mungindi Community Preschool Shade Area/Ramp $330
St Joseph’s P&F Melbourne Cup Luncheon $330
St Patrick’s School Literacy Festival $1084
St George Art Group Install lights $300
Lifeline Darling Downs Tour $500
St George State School P&C Year 6 Canberra Trip $1000
Bollon Polocrosse Association Donation $200
Dirranbandi P-10 State School Royal Flying Doctor Service Rally $880
Mungindi Show Society Mungindi Show $2000
St George State High School Sports Tournament $1500
St George State High School Year 12 Dux $100
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' Registers

In accordance with Section 190 (1) (f) of the Local
Government Regulation 2012, the following lists the

registers and other publications that are kept under the

control of the Chief Executive Officer.

These are open to inspection, with or without restriction.
In some cases, charges may apply for copies or extracts if

these are allowable.

e Land Record

e Fees and Charges

¢ Road Register

e Local Law Policies

e Shire Planning Scheme

e Council Meeting Minutes

e Council Delegations

e Delegations by Chief Executive Officer
* Policy Register

e Corporate Plan

¢ Annual Operational Plan

e Budget

¢ Annual Report

e Personal Interest of Councillors

e Personal Interests of Councillors’ Related Persons
e Personal Interest of the Chief Executive Officer and

other specified employees

Land and Reserves
46

We are responsible for the following: Land under

statutory information
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infrastructure: 2350km of roads (a further 639.58km of
Main Roads are within the Shire) and 14,040.66 hectares
of reserve land that are reserves under the Land Act 1994.

This land does not have a value within our financial
statements.

Policies

Our Human Resources Policies are under constant review
to reflect legislative changes and industrial relation matters
that arise.

The following policies and management directives are
currently being reviewed by management.

Policies/Management Directives

Workplace Bullying, Sexual Harassment &
Discrimination Policy

Support for Employees affected by Domestic Family
Violence Policy

Smoke-Free Work Environment - Management Directive

Discipline - Management Directive

Attendance & Absenteeism - Management Directive

Induction - Management Directive

Interview Panel Guidelines - Management Directive

Reimbursement of Relocation Expenses - Management
Directive

Probation Period - Management Directive

Managing Performance Issues - Management Directive
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Deputy Mayor Fiona Gaske and Mayor Rlchard Marsh welcorpe the Govel'nor o_f
Queensland his Excellency the Honoumble Paul de JerSey AC to St George.
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appendix 1 - rates & charges

Special Rates & Charges
Thallon Town Rural Fire Brigade

For the 2016/17 year a special charge was levied on those
rateable properties contained in the benefited area in
the town of Thallon. This was for the purpose of raising
revenue to fund the operation of the Thallon Town Rural
Fire Brigade. During the year $7373 was levied.

Domestic Animal Levy

For the 2016/17 year a special charge was levied on those
rateable properties in Categories 1-3, within the Balonne
Shire boundary. This levy is for the purpose of raising
revenue to fund the continued operation of Domestic
Animal Management services or activities in the Shire.
During the year $29,946 was levied.

Feral Animal Levy

For the 2016/17 year a special charge was levied on those
rateable properties In Rating Categories 63, 73, 74, 75,
79, 80 and 81 within the Balonne Shire Council boundary.
This levy is for the purpose of raising revenue to fund the
continued operation of Feral Animal Management services
or activities in the Shire. During the year $169,962 was
levied.

Environment Levy

For the 2016/17 year a special charge was levied on
those rateable properties contained in the benefited area
surrounding the towns of St George, Dirranbandi, Bollon,
Hebel, Thallon and Nindigully. This was for the purpose
of raising revenue to fund the continued operation of the
landfills in St George, Dirranbandi, Bollon, Hebel, Thallon
and Nindigully. During the year $10,125 was levied.

Rebates and Concessions
Pensioner Rate Remissions

Council provides a Remission of Rates for properties
owned or occupied by Pensioners, equal to 100% of the
General Rate up to a maximum of $150 per annum, to
owners of qualifying premises. This subsidy was in addition
to the subsidy offered by the State Government.

Payment of Rates by Instalments
The Council will accept applications for payment of

rates by instalments from property owners who can
demonstrate a genuine financial hardship. The Council has
determined that each such application is to be assessed
on its merits. All instalment plans must have the effect of
liquidating the debt within six months, unless Council, by
resolution, determines otherwise.

No premium is charged for the payment of rates by
instalments under such arrangements; however Interest
continues to be charged on overdue rates which are
subject to an instalment payment plan.

The applicant must comply strictly with the terms of the
instalment plan agreed to. Default will result in Council
requiring immediate full payment of future instalments.

Concessions for Rates and Charges and Other Remission
Requests

Concessions for Rates and Charges and other remission
requests, or rate deferral requests, are assessed on a case-
by-case basis, in accordance with Section 190 (1)(g) of the
Local Government Regulation 2012. Balonne Shire Council
grants concessions of 50% of utility charges to religious,
charitable and other organisations. Total concessions
granted for 2016/17 was $13,835.

Discount for Prompt Payment of Rates and Charges

Council allows a discount for prompt payment of rates/
charges as a means to ensuring a timely flow of cash to
fund its operations. Council set by resolution at its Budget
Meeting a discount of 10%, with the date by which, the
rate must be paid at least 30 days after the issue of the
rate notice. Council provides the discount for each rate
moiety.

The discount applies to the prompt payment of:

e General Rates

e Urban Water Charges incl. Excess Water and
Consumption Charges

e Rural Residential Water Charges incl. Excess Water
Charges

e Sewerage Charges
e Cleansing Charges
e Thallon Town Rural Fire Brigade Special Charges




appendix 2 - councillor expenses remuneration

The reimbursement of expenses incurred by a
Councillor in performing their role is governed by
Council’s Expenses Reimbursement Policy.

Policy Statement

To provide guidance for reimbursement of reasonable
expenses incurred by Councillors in discharging their duties
and responsibilities.

Principles

This policy ensures that the Council’s reimbursement of
expenses incurred by Councillors is consistent with the
local government principles and financial sustainability
criteria as defined in the Local Government Act 2009.

Councillors should not be financially disadvantaged
when carrying out their roles, and should be fairly and
reasonably compensated in accordance with statutory
requirements and community expectations.

Councillors should not receive a private benefit through
their role as a Councillor and as such this policy provides
for actual reimbursement of legitimate expenses and
full disclosure through appropriate accountability
requirements.

Scope

This policy applies to all Councillors for the
reimbursement of expenses incurred, or to be incurred, by
them in undertaking their responsibilities.

This policy does not provide for salaries or other forms
of Councillor Remuneration. Councillor Remuneration
is determined annually by the Local Government
Remuneration and Discipline Tribunal.

Definitions

Council business: means the official business of a
Councillor as generally described in Chapter 2, Part 1 of the
Local Government Act 2009. Council business should result

in a benefit being achieved either for the local government
and/or the local government area.

** Participating in a community group events or being a
representative on a board not associated with Council is
not regarded as Council business.

Entertainment & Hospitality: Means the cost to Council
of providing entertainment or hospitality as outlined in
Council’s Entertainment and Hospitality Expenditure Policy.

Professional Development: Includes study tours,
attendance at industry workshops, courses, seminars

and conferences that improves Councillors’ skills and
knowledge relevant to their responsibilities as a Councillor.

Training

Any facilitated learning activity which is considered by
Council to be a requirement for Councillors to discharge
their duties and responsibilities as Councillors.

Policy

The Council will reimburse Councillors for expenses as
set out in this policy. Any expenses not provided for by
this policy may be reimbursed only with approval from the
Chief Executive Officer.

When considering an application for approval of any
matter related to this policy, the Council or the Chief
Executive Officer must have regard to any relevant
principles as contained in the Local Government Act 2009
and any applicable budget allocation.

Council Business

The Council will reimburse expenses incurred in
undertaking Council business which includes:

* Preparing, attending and participating in Council
meetings, committee meetings, workshops, strategic
briefings, deputations and inspections

e Attending civic functions or civic events to perform
official duties or as an official Council representative

¢ Attending public/community meetings, presentation
dinners and annual general meetings as an official Council
representative

Professional Development

The Council will reimburse expenses incurred for
Council-approved professional development incurred for:

e Mandatory professional development; and

o Discretionary professional development deemed
beneficial for the Councillor’s role.
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Travel Expenses

The Council will reimburse local, interstate and overseas
travel expenses (e.g. flights, car, accommodation, meals)
deemed necessary for undertaking Council business and
approved professional development.

Councillors are to travel via the most direct route, using
the most economical and efficient mode of transport. The
amount of the reimbursement will be the actual amount
expended by the Councillor.

NOTE: Any fines incurred while travelling in Council-owned
vehicles, privately owned vehicles or rental vehicles when
attending to Council business will be the responsibility of
the Councillor incurring the fine.

Flight Bookings

All Councillor travel approved by Council will be booked
and paid for by Council.

Economy class is to be used where
possible although Council may approve
business class in certain circumstances.

Airline tickets are not transferable
and can only be procured for the
Councillor’s travel on Council business.

They cannot be used to offset other
unapproved expenses (e.g. cost of
partner accompanying the Councillor).

Travel Cost Transfers

Any travel transfer expenses
associated with Councillors travelling
for approved business will be
reimbursed on production of original
receipts. Example: trains, taxis, buses
and ferry fares

Cab charge vouchers may also be
used if approved by Council where Councillors are required
to undertake duties relating to the business of Council.

Private Vehicle Usage

Councillors may use their own vehicle with a mileage
paid at the appropriate rate determined by the Australian
Taxation Office or alternatively Councillors may request the
use of an available Council vehicle, or hire car if a Council
vehicle is not available.

Councillors are to provide written notice when travelling
for official Council purposes and provide 12 hours written
notice to book a Council vehicle.

Council may reimburse expenses for private use of a
Councillor’s own vehicle if the:

e Travel is in accordance with this policy
e Claim for mileage is substantiated with log book details

e Total travel claim does not exceed the cost of the same
travel using economy flights plus the cost of taxi transfers.

If Councillors are using their own vehicle they must have
appropriate insurance as outlined in Insurance Cover
section.

If however a Council staff member is taking a Council
vehicle and the Councillor still chooses to use their own
vehicle, without prior approval, then the kilometre
allowance will not be paid and the councillor is not
covered under council’s insurance arrangements.

Amount (cents per km)
66.0c

Accommodation

All Councillor accommodation for Council business will be
booked and paid for by Council.

Where particular accommodation is recommended by
conference organisers, Council will take advantage of the
package deal that is the most economical and convenient
to the event.

Meals

Councillors will be reimbursed for the actual cost of meals
when:

e The Councillor incurs the cost personally

e The meal was not provided within the registration

Member for Maranoa David Littleproud (second from left) met with
Cr lan Todd (left), Mayor Cr Richard Marsh, Chief Executive Officer Matthew
Magin and Deputy Mayor Cr Fiona Gaske.

E—

costs of the approved activity/event/travel

e The Councillor can produce original documents
sufficient to verify the actual meal cost

The actual and reasonable costs allowed for meals are
not to exceed the Public Service Domestic Travelling and
Relieving Expenses Directive No 9-11 September 2011
equal to the allowance for overnight stay in Brisbane (or as
updated).

Meal allowances shall be to the value below, however,
the CEO may approve payment beyond these amounts in
circumstances considered appropriate.

(Current 1 September, 2011)

Breakfast $23.65
Lunch $26.55
Dinner $45.60

If a Councillor cannot produce a receipt for a meal they
have purchased then a statutory declaration must be
completed to claim the reimbursement.

No alcohol will be paid for by Council.

Incidental Expenses

Up to $20 per day may be paid to cover any incidental
costs incurred by Councillors required to travel, and
who are away from home overnight, for official Council
business.



appendix 2 - councillor expenses remuneration

Provision of Facilities

All facilities provided to Councillors remain the property
of Council and must be returned to Council when a
Councillor’s term expires.

Administrative Tools

Administrative tools shall be provided to Councillors as
required to assist Councillors in their role.

Administrative tools include:
o Office space and meeting rooms
e Computers
¢ Mobile phones/reimbursement of call costs
e Stationery
e Access to photocopiers
e Printers
e Facsimile machines
¢ Publications

e Use of Council landline telephones and internet
access in Council offices

e Secretarial support may also be provided for the
Mayor and Councillors

e Council may provide a Councillor with home office
equipment including computer and internet access if
necessary.

Maintenance Costs of Council-

Owned Equipment

Council will be responsible for the ongoing maintenance
and reasonable wear and tear costs of Council-owned
equipment that is supplied to Councillors for official
business use. This includes the replacement of any facilities
which fall under Council’s asset replacement program.

Name Badge and Safety Equipment
for Councillors

A local government may provide Councillors with:

¢ A name badge;

* The necessary safety equipment for use on official
business e.g. safety helmet/boots.

Use of Council Vehicles for Council
business

Councillors may have access to a Council vehicle for
official business.

Insurance Cover

Council will indemnify or insure Councillors in event of
injury sustained while discharging their civic duties.

Council will pay the excess for injury claims made by
a Councillor resulting from conducting official Council
business.

For all purposes of his policy, the use of a private vehicle
for official purposes must be authorised by the Council.

Before authorisations are given under this directive, the
following conditions are to be met:

¢ the vehicle is to be covered by either a comprehensive
motor vehicle insurance policy or a third-party property
damage insurance policy

¢ the councillor is to produce evidence that the
insurance policy has been endorsed to indemnify the
Balonne Shire Council against certain liabilities at law.
This is a standard endorsement available on request from
all insurance companies. The policy does not require
the actual words “Balonne Shire Council”, the word
“employer”will suffice.

Balonne Shire Council will refund any endorsment fees.

Fuel Costs

Fuel for a Council-owned vehicle used for official Council
business, will be provided or paid for by Council.

Car Parking Amenities

Councils are to provide Councillors with reimbursement
of parking costs paid by Councillors while attending to
official Council business, upon production of tax invoice.
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Balonne Shire Council

Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 30 June 2017
2017 2016

MNotes 5'000 5000
Income
Revenue
Recurrent Revenue
Rates, Levies and Charges 3a 9,472 9,311
Fees and Charges 269 273
Rental Income 238 259
Interest and Investment Revenue 3b 425 529
Sales Revenue 3c 4,145 4,220
Other Income asy 201
Grants, Subsidies, Contributions and Donations 4a 8,620 5,563
Total Recurrent Revenue 23,526 20,356
Capital Revenue
Grants, Subsidies, Confributions and Donations b 4,304 3,744
Total Revenue 27,830 24,100
Capital Income 136 41
Total Income 27,966 24,141
Expenses
Employee Benefils 5 6,113 5,906
Materials and Services 6 9,438 8,371
Finance Costs 220 217
Depreciation and Amortisation 8,012 7,584
Total Expenses 23,783 23,088
Operating Result 4,183 1,053
Net Result 4,183 1,053
Other Comprehensive Income
Amounts which will not be reclassified subseguently to the Net Result
Gain on Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment 14 2,184 9,085
Total Other Comprehensive Income 2,184 9,095
Total Comprehensive Income 6,367 10,148
The above staterment should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Motes and Significant Accounting Policies. page 2
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Balonne Shire Council

Statement of Financial Position

as at 30 June 2017
2017 2016

Notes 5'000 5000
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 7 21,616 17,168
Trade and Other Receivables & 3,636 1,870
Inventories 216 198
Total Current Assets 25,468 19,236
Mon-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 9 260,868 260,634
Intangible Assets 17 36
Total Non-Current Assets 260,883 260,670
TOTAL ASSETS 286,351 279,906
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Trade and Other Payables 11 1,310 1,021
Borrowings 12 253 240
Provisions 13 1,029 a81
Other Liabilities 7 B
Total Current Liabilities 2,601 2,250
Mon-Current Liabilities
Borrowings 12 2,825 3181
Provisions 13 151 168
Total Mon-Current Liabilities 3,076 3,349
TOTAL LIABILITIES 5677 5,599
Net Community Assets 280,674 274,307
COMMUNITY EQUITY
Asset Revaluation Surplus 14 167,400 195,216
Retained Surplus 83,274 79,091
Total Community Equity 280,674 274,307
The above staterment should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Motes and Significant Accounting Paolicies. page 3
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Balonne Shire Council

Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 30 June 2017
Asset
Revaluation Retained Total
Surplus Surplus Equity
Noles £'000 5000 £'000
2017
Opening Balance 195,218 79,091 274,307
a. Net Operating Surplus for the Year - 4183 4183
b. Other Comprehensive Income
= Revaluations : Property, Plant and Equipment 14 2,184 2,184
Other Comprehensive Income 2,184 - 2,184
Total Comprehensive Income 2,184 4,183 6,367
Equity Balance as at 30 June 2017 197,400 B3,274 280,674
Asset
Revaluation  Retained Total
Surplus Surplus Equity
Noles £'000 £'000 £'000
2016
Opening Balance 186,121 78,038 264,159
a. Net Operating Surplus for the Year - 1,053 1,053
b. Other Comprehensive Incame
- Revaluations : Property, Plant and Equipment 9,085 - 9,095
Other Comprehensive Income 9,085 - 9,095
Total Comprehensive Income 9,085 1,053 10,148
Equity Balance as at 30 June 2016 195,216 79,091 274,307
The above staterment should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Motes and Significant Accounting Policies. page 4
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Balonne Shire Council

Statement of Cash Flows

for the year ended 30 June 2017
2017 2016
Notes 5'000 5000
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from Customers 13,782 13,808
Payments to Suppliers and Employees (15,231) (15,724)
(1,448) (1,815)
Receipts:
Investment and Interest Revenue Received 425 528
Rental Income 238 259
Mon Capital Grants and Contributions 7,935 5,563
Other (639) 2,392
Payments:
Borrowing Coslts (220) (217)
Other 18 19
Net Cash Inflow from Operating Activities 18 6,308 6,730
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Receipts:
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 136 41
Grants, Subsidies, Contributions and Donations 4,304 3,744
Payments:
Purchase of Property, Flant and Equipment (6,078) (8,125)
Payments for Intangible Assets 19 33
Net Cash Outflow from Investing Activities (1,619) (4,307
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Payments:
Repayment of Bormowings (241) (230)
Met Cash Qutflow from Financing Activities (241) (230)
Met Increase/{Decrease) for the year 4448 2,193
Cash and Cash Equivalents at beginning of the financial year 17,168 14,875
Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of financial year 7 21,616 17,168
The above staterment should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Motes and Significant Accounting Paolicies. page 5
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Balonne Shire Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Financial Staternents 2017

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(1.a) Basis of preparation

These general purpose financial statements are for
the period 1 July 2016 to 30 June 2017 and have
been prepared in compliance with the requirements
of the Local Government Act 2009 and the Local
Government Regulation 2012. Consequently, these
financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with  all  Australian  Accounting
Standards, Australian Accounting Interpretations and
other authoritative pronouncements issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board.

These financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention except for the
following:

« Financial assels and liabilities, certain classes of
property, plant and equipment which are
measured at fair value;

Recurrent/Capital Classification

Revenue and expenditure are presented as
“recurrent” or “capital® in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income on the following basis:

Capital Revenue includes grants and subsidies
received which are tied to specific projects for the
replacement or upgrade of existing non-current
assets andfor investment in new assets,

The following transactions are classified as either
“Capital Income" or "Capital Expenses" depending
on whether thery result in accounting gains or losses;

+ Disposal of non-current assets
« Revaluations of investment properly and
property, plant and eguipment.

All other revenue and expenses have been classified
as "recurrent”.

{1.b) Statement of Compliance

These general purpose financial statements comply
with all accounting standards and interpretations
issued by the Awustralian Accounting Standards
Board (AASB) that are relevant to Council's
operations and effective for the current reporting
period. Bacause the Council is a not-for-profit entity
and the Australian Accounting Standards include
requirements for not-for-profit entiies which are

inconsistent with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), to the extent these inconsistencies
are applied, these financial statements do not comply
with IFRS. The main impacts are the offsetting of
revaluation and impairment gains and losses within a
class of assets, and the timing of the recognition of
non-reciprocal grant revenue.

(1.c) Constitution

Balonne Shire Council is constituted under the
Queensland Local Government Act 2009 and is
domiciled in Australia.

(1.d) Date of Authorisation

The financial statements were authorised for issue on
the date they were submitted to the Auditor-General
for final signature. This is the date the management
cerificate is signed.

(1.e) Currency

The Council uses the Australian dollar as its functional
currency and its presentation currency.

(1.f) Adoption of MNew and Revised
Accounting Standards

In the current year, Council adopted all of the new and
revised Standards and Interpretations issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASE) that
ara relevant to its operations and effective for the
current reporting period. The adoption of the new and
revised Standards and Interpretations has not
resulted in any material changes to Council's
accounting policies.

Balonne Shire Council has not applied any Australian
Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have
been issued but are not yet effective.

This year Council has applied AASBE 124 Related
Party Disclosures for the first time. As a result Council
has disclosed more information about related parties
and transactions with those related parties. This
information is presented in note 27,

Other amended Australian Accounting Standards and
Interpretations which were issued at the date of
autharisation of the financial report, but have future
commencement dates are not likely to have a matarial
impact on the financial statements.

page &
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for the year ended 30 June 2017

appendix 3 - financial statements

Financial Staternents 2017

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

As al the date of authorisation of the financial
statements, the standards and interpretations listed
below were in issue but not yelt effective.

Effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2017

« AASB 2014-5 Amendments fo Auslralian
Accounting Standards ansing from AASE 15

«  AASE 2015-8 Amendments fo  Australian
Accounting Standards — Effective Date of AASE
15

«  AASE  2016-2 Amendments fo  Ausiralian
Accounting Slandards — Disclosure  Inifiative:
Amendments fo AASE 107

* AASBE 20164 Amendments fo Australian
Accounting Standards — Recoverable Amount of
Non-Cash-Generaling Specialised Assefs of
Mot-for-Profit Entities

«  AASE  2016-T Amendments fo  Australian
Accounting Standards - Deferral of AASE 15 for
Not-for-Profit Entities

Effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018

«  AASE 9 Financial instruments (December 2008)

« AASE 15 Revenue from Contracts  with
Customers

«  AASE  2010-T Amendments fo  Australian
Accounting Standards arsing from AASE 9
(Dacember 2010)

« AASE 20141 Amendments fo  Ausfralian
Accounting Standards (Part E)

«  AASE 2014-T Amendments fo Australian
Accounting Standards ansing from AASBE 9@
(December 2014)

«  AASE 1057 Appiication of Ausfralian Accounting
Standards

« PAASE 2016-3 Amendments fo  Ausfralian
Accounting Standards — Clanifications to AASB
15

Effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2019

«  AASE 16 Leases
«  AASE 16 Leases (Appendix D)

« AASE 2016-8  Amendments fo  Australian
Accounting Standards - Australian
Implementation  Guidance for  Nor-for-Profit
Entities

«  AASBE 1058 Income of Not-for-Frofit Entities

« AASE 2016-8B Amendments fo  Australian
Accounting Standards - Australian Implementation
Guidance for Nof-for-Profit Entifies

(1.g) Critical accounting judgements and
key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of Council's accounting policies,
management i5 required to make judgements,
estimates and assumplions about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources, The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. The
estimates and ongoing assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised and in future periods as relevant.

Judgements, estimates and assumptions that have a
potential significant effect are outlined in the following
financial statement notes:

« Valuation and depreciation of Property, Plant
& Equipment - Note 1.1 and Note 12
Provisions - Mote 1.p and Naote 16
Contingencies - Note 20.

(1.h) Revenue

Rates, levies, granis and other revenue are
recognised as revenue on receipt of funds or earlier
upon unconditional entitlement to the funds,

Rates and levies

Where rate monies are received prior lo the
commencement of the rating/levying period, the

page T
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Balonne Shire Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Financial Staternents 2017

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

amount is recognised as revenue in the period in
which they are received, otherwise rates are
recognised at the commencemeant of rating period.

Grants and subsidies

Grants, subsidies and contributions that are non-
reciprocal in nature are recognised as revenue in the
year in which Council obtains contral over them. In
the financial year ended 30 June 2017, and previous
years, an equivalent amount was transferred from
retained earmings to the relevant reserve until the
funds were expended. Unspent non-reciprocal
capital grants were placed in the Unspent capital
arants reserve. On 20 March 2015, council passed
a resolution to close all existing reserves and
account for these restrictions using an internal
management accounting system. Intemal restrictions
that have been placed on council's cash and cash
equivalents are now disclosed in Note 10,

Mon-cash contributions

Mon-cash contributions with a value in excess of the
recognition thresholds, are recognised as revenue
and as non-current assels. Mon-cash contributions
below the thresholds are recorded as revenue and
EXpENses,

Rental income

Rental revenue from investment and other property
is recognised as income on a periodic straight line
basis over the lease term.

Interest

Interest received from term deposits is accrued over
the term of the investment,

Sales revenue

Sale of goods is recognised when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the
buyer, generally when the customer has taken
undisputed delivery of the goods.

The council generates revenues from a number of
services including mainly contracts for road and
earthworks. Revenue from  contracts and
recoverable  works  generally  comprises &
recoupment of material costs together with an hourly
charge for use of equipment and employees.
Confract revenue and associated costs are

recognised by reference to the stage of completion of
the contract activity at the reporting date.

Revenue is measured at the fair wvalue of
consideration received or receivable in relation to that
activity. Where consideration is received for the
service in advance it is included in other liabilities and
is recognised as revenue in the period when the
service is performed.

Fees and Charges

Fees and charges are recognised upon unconditional
entittement to the funds. Generally this is upon
lodgement of the relevant applications or documents,
issuing of the infringement notice or when the service
is provided.

(1.i} Financial assets and financial
liabilities

Council recognises a financial asset or a financial
liability in its Statement of Financial Position when,
and only when, Council becomes a party 10 the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Balonne Shire Council has categorised and measured
the financial assets and financial liabilities held at
balance date as follows:

o

+ Cash and cash equivalents (Mote 1.j)
+ Receivables - measured at amortised cost (Mote
1K)

Financial liabilities

+« [Payables - measured at amortised cost (Note 1.0)
« Borrowings - measured at amortised cost (Mote
1.q)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are presented
separately from each other and offsetting has not
been applied.

The fair value of financial instruments is determined
as follows:

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents and non-
interest bearing monetary financial assets and
financial liabilities approximate their carmying amounts
and are not disclosed separately.

page &
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Financial Staternents 2017

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The fair value of borrowings, as disclosaed in Note 15
to the accounts, is determined by reference to
published price quotations in an active market andfor
by reference to pricing models and valuation
techniques. It reflects the value of the debt if the
Council repaid it in full at balance date. As it is the
intention of the Council to hold its bormowings for
their full term, no adjustment provision is made in
these accounts.

The fair value of trade receivables approximates the
amortised cost less any impairment.

The fair wvalue of payables approximates the
amortised cost.

Balonne Shire Council does not recognise financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value in the
Statement of Financial Position.

All other disclosures relating to the measurement
and financial risk management of financial
instruments are included in Note 25,

{1.j) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
all cash and cheques receipted bul not banked at
the year end, deposits held at call with financial
institutions.

{1.k) Receivables

Trade receivables are recognised al the amounts
due at the time of sale or service delivery i.e. the
agreed purchase price / contract price. Settlement
of these amounts is required within 30 days from
invoice date.

The collectability of receivables is assessed
periodically and if there is objective evidence that
Council will nol be able to collect all amounts due,
the carrying amount is reduced for impairment. The
loss is recognised in finance costs. The amount of
the impairment is the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated cash flows discounted at the effective
interest rate.

All known bad debts were written-off at 30 June.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts  previously
written off in the same period are recognised as
finance costs in the Statement of Comprehensive

Income. If an amount is recovered in a subsequent
period it is recognised as revenue.

(1.)  Property, Plant & Equipment

Each class of property, plant and equipment is slated
at cost or fair value less, where applicable, any
accumulated depreciation and  accumulated
impairment loss. Items of plant and equipment with a
total value of less than $5,000, and infrastructure
assets and buildings with a total value of less than
£10,000 are treated as an expense in the year of
acquisition.  All other items of property, plant and
equipment are capitalised,

The classes and useful lives of property, plant and
equipment recognised by the Council are:

Category Years
Land and Improvements not depreciated
Buildings 15-100
Flant and Equipment 3-50
Furniture: & Fittings 5-60
Infrastructure

- Transport Infrastructure 10-200

- Water Supply Network 10-120

- Urban Waste Water 10-120

- Other infrastruciure assets  5-100
Work in progress Mot depreciated
Acquisition of assets

Acquisitions of assets are initially recorded at cost.
Cost is determined as the fair value of the assets
given as consideration plus costs incidental to the
acquisition, including freight in, architect's fees and
engineering design fees and all other establishment
costs,

Property, plant and equipment received in the form of
confributions, are recognised as assets and revenues
at fair value by Council valuation where that value
exceeds the recognition thresholds for the respective
assel class. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell the asset in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement
date.

Capital and operating expenditure

Direct labour and materials and an appropriate
proportion of overheads incurred in the acquisition or
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Balonne Shire Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Financial Staternents 2017

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

construction of assets are ftreated as capital
expenditure.  Assets under construction are not
depreciated  until  they are completed and
commissioned, at which time they are reclassified
from work in progress to the appropriate property,
plant and equipment class.

Routine operating maintenance, repair costs and
minor renewals o maintain the operational capacity
and useful life of the non-current asset is expensed
as incurred, while expenditure that relates to
replacement of a major component of an asset o
maintain its service potential is capitalised.

Waluation

Land and improvements, buildings, major plant and
all infrastruclure assets are measured on the
revaluation basis, at fair value, in accordance with
AASB 116 Property, Plant & Equipment, Other plant
and equipment and work in progress are measured
at cost,

Mon-current physical assets measured at fair value
are revalued, where required, so that the camrying
amount of each class of asset does nol materially
differ from its fair value at the reporting date. This is
achieved by engaging independent, professionally
qgualified valuers to determine the fair value for each
class of property, plant and equipment assels at
least once every 3 years. This process involves the
valuer physically sighting a representative sample of
Council assels across all asset classes and making
their own assessments of the condition of the assets
at the date of inspection.

In the intervening years, Council uses intemal
reviews, or a desktop valuation by external valuers.
The intemal review involves angineears o assass the
condition and cost assumptions associated with all
infrastructure assets, the results of which are
considered in combination with the Asset revaluation
index: Engineering construction, Queensiand.
Together these are used to form the basis of a
management wvaluation for infrastructure asset
classes in each of the intervening years. A deskiop
valuation involves management providing updated
information to the wvaluer regarding additions,
deletions and changes in assumptions such as
useful life, residual value and condition rating. The
valuer then determines suitable indices which are
applied to each of these asset classes.

An analysis performed by management has indicated
that, on average, the variance between an indexed
asset value and the valuation by an independent
valuer when performed is not significant and the
indices used by Council are sound. Further details in
relation to valuers, the methods of valuation and the
key assumplions used are disclosed in Mole 13.

Any revaluation increment arising on the revaluation
of an asset is credited to the appropriate class of the
asset revaluation surplus, excepl to the extent it
reverses a revaluation decrement for the class
previously recognised as an expense. A decrease in
the carrying amount on revaluation is charged as an
expense to the extent it exceeds the balance, if any,
in the revaluation surplus of that asset class.

On revaluation, accumulated depreciation is restated
proportionately with the change in the carrying
amount of the asset and any change in the estimate
of remaining useful life.

Separately identified significant components of assets
are measured on the same basis as the assets to
which they relate.

Capital work in proqress

The cost of property, plant and equipment being
constructed by the Council includes the cost of
purchased services, materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proporion of labour overheads.

Depreciation

Land is not depreciated as it has an unlimited useful
life,  Depreciation on other property, plant and
equipment assets is calculated on a straight-line basis
s0 as to write-off the net cost or revalued amount of
each depreciable asset, less its estimated residual
valueg (where applicable), progressively over its
estimated useful life to the Council. Management
believe that the straight-line basis appropriately
reflects the pattemn of consumption of all Council
assels,

Assets are depreciated from the date of acquisition ar,
in respect of internally constructed assets, from the
time an asset is completed and commissioned ready
for use.

Where assets have separately idenfifiable

components that are subject to regular replacement,
these components are assigned useful lives distinct

page 10
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Financial Staternents 2017

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

from the asset to which they relate. Any expenditure
that increases the originally assessed capacity or
sarvice potential of an asset is capitalised and the
new depreciable amount is depreciated over the
remaining useful life of the asset to the Council.

Major spares purchased specifically for particular
assets that are above the asset recognition
threshold are capitalised and depreciated on the
same basis as the asset to which they relate.

The depreciable amount of improvements to or on
leasehold land is allocated progressively over the
estimated useful lives of the improvements to the
Council or the unexpired period of the lease,
whichever is the shorter.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and of
property, plant and eguipment assets are reviewed
at the end of each reporing period and adjusted
where necessary to reflect any changes in the
pattern of consumption, physical wear and tear,
technical or commercial obsolescence, or
management intentions. The condition assessments
performed as part of the annual valuation process
for assets measured at depreciated current
replacement cost are used to estimate the useful
lves of these assels at each reporting date.

{1.m) Impairment of Non-Current Assets

Each non-current physical and intangible asset and
group of assels is assessed for indicators of
impairment annually. If an indicator of possible
impairment exists, the Council determines the
asset's recoverable amount. Any amount by which
the asset's carrying amount exceeds the recoverable
amount is recorded as an impairment loss. The
recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its
fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

{1.n) Leases

Leases of plant and equipment under which the
Council as lessee/lessor assumesftransfers
substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to
the ownership of the asset, but not the legal
ownership, are classified as finance leases. Other
leases, where substantially all the risks and benefits
remain with the lessor, are classified as operating
leases,

Qperating leases

Payments made under operating leases are expensed
in equal instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the leased property.

(1.0} Payables

Trade creditors are recognised upon receipt of the
goods or services ordered and are measured at the
agreed purchasefcontract price net of applicable
discounts other than contingent discounts. Amounts
owing are unsecured and are generally seftled on 30
day terms.

(1.p} Liabilities - Employee Benefits

Liabilities are recognised for employee benefits such
as wages and salaries, annual leave and long service
leave in respect of services provided by the
employees up to the reporting date.  Liabilities for
employee benefits are assessed at each reporting
date. Where it is expected that the leave will be paid
in the next twelve months the liability is treated as a
current liability. Otherwise the liability is treated as
non-current,

Superannuation

The superannuation expense for the reporting period
is the amount of the contribution the Council makes to
the superannuation plan which provides benefits to its
employees.  Details of those arrangements are set
out in Note 21.

Annual Leave

A liability for Annual Leave is recognised and is
calculated on current wage and salary levels and
includes related on costs. The liability is reported in
Mote 11 as Trade and Other Payables,

Long service leave

A liability for long service leave is measured as the
present value of the estimated future cash outflows to
be made in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date. The value of the
liability is calculated using current pay rates and
projected future increases in those rates and includes
related employee on-costs. The estimates are
adjusted for the probability of the employes remaining

page 11



appendix 3 - financial statements

Balonne Shire Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Financial Staternents 2017

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

in the Council's employment or other associated
employment which would result in the Council being
required to meet the liability. Adjustments are then
made fo allow for the proporion of the benefit
eamed to date, and the result is discounted fo
present value. The interest rales attaching fo
Commomnwealth Government guaranteed securities
at the reporling date are used to discount the
estimated future cash outflows to their present value.
This liability is reported in Mote 16 as a provision.

Where employees have met the prerequisite length
of service and council does not have an
unconditional right to defer this liability beyond 12
months long service leave is classified as a current
liability. Otherwise it is classified as non-current.

(1.q) Borrowings and Borrowing Costs

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value plus
any directly atirbutable transaction  costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition these liabilities are
measured at amonised cost

In  accordance with the Local Govemnment
Regulation 2012 council adopts an annual debt
policy that sets out council's planned borrowings for
the next nine years. Council's current policy is to
only borrow for capital projects and for a term no
langer than the expected life of the asset. Council
also aims to comply with the Queensland Treasury
Corporation's borrowing guidelines and ensure that
sustainability indicators remain within acceptable
levels at all times.

All borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred. Mo bomrowing costs are
capitalised on qualifying assets.

{1.r) Asset Revaluation Surplus

The asset revaluation surplus  comprises
adjustments relating to changes in value of property,
plant and equipment that do not result from the use
of those assets. Net incremental changes in the
carrying valug of classes of non-current assets since
their initial recognition are accumulated in the asset
revaluation surplus.

Increases and decreases on revaluation are offset
within a class of assets.

Where a class of assets is decreased on revaluation,
that decrease is offset first against the amount

remaining in the asset revaluation surplus in respect
of that class. Any excess is treated as an expense.

When an asset is disposed of, the amount reported in
the asset revaluation surplus in respect of that asset
is retained in the asset revaluation surplus and not
transferred to retained surplus.

(1.s) Retained Surplus

In reference to the comparative figures for the year
ended 30 June 2017, this represents the amount of
Council's net funds nol set aside in internally imposed
expenditure restrictions to meet specific fulure needs.

(1.t} Rounding and Comparatives

Amounts included in the financial statements have
been rounded to the nearest $1,000 unless otherwise
indicated.

Comparative information has been restated where
necessary to be consistent with disclosures in the
current reporting period,

{(1.u)  Trust funds held for outside parties

Funds held in the trust account on behalf of outside
parties include those funds from the sale of land for
arrears in rates, deposits for the contracted sale of
land, security deposits lodged to  guarantee
performance and unclaimed monies (e.g. wages) paid
into the trust account by the Council. The Council
performs only a custodian role in respect of these
monies and because the monies cannot be used for
Council purposes, they are not considered revenue
nor brought to account in the financial statemenis.

The monies are disclosed in the notes to the financial
staterments for information purposes only in Note 23,

(1.v) Taxation

Income of local authorities and public authorities is
exempt from Commonwealth taxation except for
Fringe Benefits Tax and Goods and Services Tax
('GST'). The net amount of GST recoverable from the
ATO or payable to the ATO is shown as an asset or
liability respectively.
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Financial Statements 2017

Balonne Shire Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Mote 2(a). Council Functions - Component Descriptions

Details relating to the Council's functions / activities as reported in Note 2(b) are as follows:

CORPORATE GOVERMANCE

To provide effective organisational leadership through strategic planning, accountability and ethical standards of
practice

CORPORATE SERVICES

To enhance the capability and performance of Balonne Shire Council and ensure resources are directed o achieve
organisational objectives.

PLANNING, DEVELOPMENT AND ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES

To implement appropriate planning and building construction controls to ensure and encourage the balance
between quality development of the shire and the protection of the environment.

To implement policies and operational programs that will contribute to the environmental health and wellbeing of the
community,

RURAL SERVICES

To provide effective and efficient management of stock routes, animal and weed pests.

INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES

To provide efficient and effective transport and drainage infrastructure.
To provide community infrastructure to meet the needs of current and future generations.
To provide efficient, effective and environmentally sound waste water disposal services and water supplies.

COMMUNITY LIFESTYLE

To encourage and promaote a sense of community and belonging, community pride, engagement, wellbeing and
grow social capital.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
To foster a vibrant economic environment.

COMMERCIAL SERVICES
To undertake commercial works within the scope of Council's expertise in an efficient and cost effective manner.

page 13

66



67

B 1 abed
Q
m 908'6LZ | £50°F liprL'z) (ggo'sz) | - (g80'€2) LR £5 FrL'E 9Lk 615's |e10L
- £p0°L EFO0'L (9ZL°E) - (gzZL'g) BaL°F - - GOL'F - £30IABS |BIISWIWDD
.w 1z (v) (v) (gve) |- (o) | vez - - 05 pez Juswdojanag oiwoua3
a DZE'GL [528°2) (BLF'E) (z28'2) - (zi8'2) LBt - £t anL are afysay AU
Py fzoiee  |(0L0F) (6L L) (gsg'zh) - (g5e'zL) gele 9 280°¢ Lgg'e 2LE'} FINIBT BUNDMUSEIU)
(7, Fot (g6t} {N8=)] (LEL) - (LEL) €62 - £l Ll 201 BAAIBG |BINY
— got'e lozs) tozs) (11L) - (L) 1] - - L6} - [BJUSWUONAUT PUE Jualidojanag 7 Buluueg
a gL0'eg ¥E6L LIB'L (026" L) - (0EE"L) FEE'E Ll ¥BE'D EL5E SE0IABE BBI0dIDD
-a - [i5t) (L5¥) (45t} - (45%) - - - - sauBLWanoD) Blelodion
n 000.% 0005 000.% 0005 000.% 000.5 000.5 000.5 000.% 000.% 000.5 aLoz
suoiesadn I 1T SIURIS Jaui0 SIURIEY
a slassy Hnsay Bupunoay |sasuadxy enden Bupinaay alaau) [epdes Bupunaay
suoouny
n el 1N (.7} |eyo L sasusdxy |ejo L LT
ﬁ unsay 1aN weiboid 5505 weiboid s3045
. isc'oRz | gAMLy l(zs2) (em'ezl | - (egs'ez) | 996'iz 9EL rOE'y 906'vL 0za'e |e}oL
: SLLL SLLL (rac'z) - (ree'z) 6607 - - 660'F - S30IAIBS [BIUBLILIGTD
o IE (£8g) (cap) (vag) - (vag) 105 - ool oF 1 WeWdoEAeq JIWOUCOT
X Zra'GlL {LELZ) (L6Z'Z) (EFL"2) - (ere'2) Z55 - ulv]} S0l LvE alfjsay Aunwiwsg
® epe'iez  ((LLDE) ieez'd) (22F°EL) - (22v'EL) a0k oL 85 FOLF PoL'e 06F'E £30IAI8S aUnjInSEU|
d GEL [E15) IEL5) (atd) - et €2 - - 951 £ Sa0IABS |BINY
n FrEE (55} (§ 2551 (Ztd) - (Zts) asl - - aBl - [EusuGnAUT pue ueswdoasg g Buluued
e 951 'GE 206 Frs'6 (s9g°Z) - (59£'2) L5 8l - gle'a LEE'S SEMAIBS SRIOCIN]
Q - (2t (2t (z¥t) - (z¥+) - - . - - sauBWSKCD Bjesodio]
p 0005 000.5 000.% 0005 000.% 000,5 000.5 000.%5 0005 000.% 0005 LlL0Z
suonesadn Jayin SIURID 18010 SIURID
a 51395y Hnsay Bupunoay |sasuadxy endey Bupunasy aloau| jepden Burunoay
suoauUng
IejoL 19N wroup |ejol sasuadxg |ejol awodu|
Hnsay 18N weiboid ssouD) wesboud ssoin

uonound Aq synsay Jo siskjeuy "(q)z 210N

10z aunf Qg papus Jead ay) o)
sjuawalels [elJueuld ay) O] saloN

[IDUNO7) aJIYS auuojey

LLOT SWUSWEES EIDUBLY



appendix 3 - financial statements

Financial Statements 2017
Balonne Shire Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Mote 3. Revenue Analysis
2017 2016

Notes 5'000 $'000
(a). Rates, Levies and Charges
General Rates / Community Levy 6,365 6,257
Special Rates 207 208
Water 1,796 1,770
Water Consumption, Rental and Sundries 79 66
Urban Waste Water 1,088 1,070
Waste Charges 854 B36
Total rates and utility charge revenue 10,389 10,207
Less: Discounts (886) (866)
Less: Pensioner remissions {31) {30)
TOTAL RATES, LEVIES AND CHARGES 9472 9,311
(b). Interest and Investment Revenue
Interest Received from Term Deposits 380 483
Interest from Overdue Rates and Utility Charges 45 46
TOTAL INTEREST AND INVESTMENT REVEMUE 425 529
(c). Sales Revenue
Sale of services
Contract and Recoverable Works 3,872 4170
Other - Private Works 227 -
Visitor Info Centre 46 50
TOTAL SALES REVENUE 4,145 4,220
The amount recognised as revenue for contract revenue during the financial year is the
amount receivable in respect of invoices issued during the period. There are no
econtracts in progress at the year end. The contract work carried out is not subject to
retentions.
Note 4. Grants, Subsidies, Contributions and Donations
{a) Recurrent
General Purpose Grants 7.576 4,729
State Government Subsidies and Grants Bzz =215
Commonwealth Government Subsidies and Grants 179 m
Contributions 43 65
TOTAL RECURRENT GRANTS, SUBSIDIES,
CONTRIBEUTIONS AND DOMNATIONS 8,620 5563
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Financial Statements 2017
Balonne Shire Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 Juna 2017

Mote 4. Grants, Subsidies, Contributions and Donations (continued)

2017 2016
Notes 5'000 $'000
(b) Capital
State Government Subsidies and Grants 1,120 1,076
Commonwealth Government Subsidies and Grants 3,184 2 668
TOTAL CAPITAL GRANTS, SUBSIDIES,
NTRIBUTIONS AND DOMNATION 4,304 3,744
Balonne Shire Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Mote 5. Employee Benefits
Wages and Salaries 3,860 3,604
Annual, Sick and Long Service Leave Entittements 846 7ay
Superannuation 17 609 5495
Training Costs 210 293
Workers Compensation Insurance 7 108
Fringe Benefits Tax (FBT) 16 12
Councillors Remuneration 414 408
6,026 5,808
Other Employes Related Expenses 87 98
TOTAL EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 6,113 5,906
Total Employees at year end;
Administration Staff 34 32
Depot and Qutdoors Staff 49 53
Total full time equivalent employees B3 85
Total Elected members i 7
page 16
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Financial Statements 2017
Balonne Shire Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017
MNote 6. Materials and Services
2017 2016

Notes 5'000 $'000
Advertising and Marketing a7 65
Administration Supplies and Consumables a8 34
Aerodrome Maintenance 177 154
Audit of Annual Financial Statements by the Auditor-General of Queensland 43 58
Audit Services 13 21
Cleansing Services 816 B16
Communications and IT 171 120
Community Donations  Assistance a7 45
Conftractors 5 -
Councillors' Expenses (incl. Mayor) - Other 16 kY|
Insurance 289 343
Land Protection Fund Precept 245 24
Legal Fees 84 203
Power 53 a0
Repairs and Maintenance 4 880 4 560
Subscriptions and Registrations g9 103
Swimming Pools - Council Owned 324 289
Urban Waste Water 283 424
Urban Waler Services 859 1,058
Other 809 775
TOTAL MATERIALS AND SERVICES 9438 9,3M
Mote 7. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash at Bank and on Hand 7,289 2,382
QTC Cash Fund 14,317 14,776
TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21,616 17,168
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Financial Statements 2017
Balonne Shire Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Mote 7. Cash and Cash Equivalents (continued)
2017 2016

Notes 5'000 $'000
Restricted Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments
Council's Cash and Cash Equivalents are subject to a number of Internal and
External Restrictions that limit amounts available for discretionary of future use.
These include:
Internally imposed Expenditure Restrictions at the reporting date:
Future Capital Works 618 618
Future Asset Replacement 6,345 4,184
Future Recurrent Expenditure 13 50
Total Unspent Restricted Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 6,976 4,852
Cash is held at Westpac Banking Corporation in a Business Cheque Account
and a Business Cash Reserve Account. The bank currently has a rating of AA2.
Surplus cash requirements are deposited at Queensland Treasury Corporation
in a Cash Fund Account which has a AAA rating.
Mote 8. Trade and Other Receivables
Current
Rateable Revenue and Utility Charges 361 257
Other Debtors 2,241 1,527
Debtor Accruals 282 -
Government Grants and Subsidies G685 -
Prepayments 73 92
Total 3,642 1,876
less: Provision for Impairment
Rateable Revenue and Utility Charges (5) (5
Other Debtors i1 (1)
Total Provision for Impairment - Receivables (6) (8)
TOTAL CURRENT TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 3,636 1,870

Interest is charged on outstanding rates at a rate of 11% per annum. No interest is charged on other debtors.
There is no concentration of credit risk for rates and utility charges.
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Financial Statements 2017
Balonne Shire Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Mote 10. Fair Value Measurements

Council measures and recognises the following assets at fair value on a recurring basis:
Property, plant and equipment
- Land and land improvements
- Buildings
- Other Infrastructure Assets
- Transport Infrastructure
- Water Supply Assets
- Urban Waste Water

Council does not measure any liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis,

Council has assets and liabilities which are not measured at fair value, but for which fair values are disclosed in other
nofes.

Council borrowings are measured at amortised cost with interest recognised in profit or loss when incurred. The fair
value of borrowings disclosed in Note 15 is provided by the Queensland Treasury Corporalion and represents the
contractual undiscounted cash flows at balance date (level 2).

The camying amounts of frade receivables and trade payables are assumed to approximate their fair values due to
their short-term nature (level 2).

In accordance with AASE 13 fair value measurements are categorised on the following basis:
- Fair value based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1)
- Fair value based on inputs that are directly or indirectly observable for the asset or liability (level 2)
- Fair value based on unobservable inputs for the asset and liability (level 3)

The following table categorizes fair value measurements as either level 2 or level 3 in accordance with AASE 13,
Council does not have any assels or liabilities measured at fair value which meet the criteria for categorisation as
level 1.

The fair values of the assels are determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of cbservable data,
where it is available, and minimise the use of enlity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
asset are observable, the asset is included in level 2. If one or mare of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the asset is included in level 3. This is the case for Council infrastructure assets, which are of a specialist
nature for which there is no active market for similar or identical assets. These assets are valued using a combination
of observable and unobservable inputs.

The table presents the Council's assets and liabilities measured and recognised at fair value at 30 June 2017,
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Balonne Shire Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Mote 10. Fair Value Measurements (continued)

(1) The following table presents all assets and liabilities that have been measured and recognised at
fair values:

| Fair Value Measurement using: |

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Date Quoted Significant Significant
of latest prices n obsarvable  unobservable
valuation active mkis inpuls npuls
2017 $'000 $'000 $'000 3000
Property, Plant and Equipment
- Land 300617 - 2,992 - 2,882
- Buildings 3N06MT - 1,693 16,716 18,409
- Other Infrastructure Assels IN0EMT - . 18,791 18,791
- Transport Infrastructure IN0EMT - - 182,945 182,945
- Water Supply IN0EMT - - 18,6843 18,643
- Urban Waste Water IN0EM T - . 10,871 10,871
Total Property, Plant and Equipment - 4,685 247,966 252,651
2016
Praperty, Plant and Equipment
- Land INDEME - 3,041 - 3,041
- Buildings 00616 - 1,727 19,010 20,737
- Other Infrastructure Assets 0616 - - 16,443 16,443
- Transport Infrastructure IN0EME - - 179,961 179,861
- Water Supply IN0EME - - 14,921 14,921
- Urban Waste Water IN0EME - - 11,786 11,786
Total Property, Plant and Equipment - 4,768 242121 246,889
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Balonne Shire Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Mote 10. Fair Value Measurements icontinued)

Valuation Processes — Land and Building Assets

Land and Building Assets were independently valued as at 30 June 2016 by AssetVal Pty Ltd. A desktop
valuation was performed by Assefval Pty Lid as at 30 June 2017.

Where there is an active and liquid market as evidenced by sales transactions of similar property types, a Market
Approach by way of Direct Comparison or Income methods can be ufilised, and are accepted wvaluation
methodologies under AASE 13. If a Market Approach is adopted, the valuation is deemed to be a Level 2 input.

Direct Comparison method which is considered a Level 2 input on the Fair Value Hierarchy, involves the analysis
of sales evidence and comparisons with the subject land taking into account matters such as area, location and
other general site characteristics. The Council note the Direct Comparison approach has been utilised in the
assessment for all Council Land Assets, however the fair value measurement is a Level 2,

Valuation Process and Assumptions — Buildings Assets

Where there is an active and liquid market as evidenced by sales transactions of similar asset types, the Market
Approach by Direct Comparison, Income or Summation methods can be utilised, and is an accepted valuation
meathodology under AASB13. If a Market Approach is adopted, the valuation is deamed to be a Level 2 input,

Due to the predominantly specialised nature of Local Government Assets, infrastructure, building and other asset
valuations are undertaken on a Cost Approach (Depreciated Replacement Cost), an accepted valuation
methodology under AASB13. The cost approach is deemed a Level 3 Input. Under this approach, the following
process has been adopted:

= Where there is no market, the net current value of an asset is the gross current value less accumulated
depreciation to reflect the consumed or expired service potential of the asset, Published/available market
data for recent projects, and/or published cost guides are utilised to determing the estimated replacement
cost (gross value) of the asset, including allowances for preliminaries and professional feeas,

A condition assessment is applied, which is based on factors such as the age of the asset, overall condition
as noted by the Valuer during inspection, economic andfor functional obsolescence, The condition
assessment directly translates to the level of depreciation applied.

+« |n determining the level of accumulated depreciation for major assets, we have disaggregated into significant
components which exhibit different patterns of consumption (useful lives). Residual value is also factored
which is the value at the time the asset is considered to be no longer available. The condition assessment is
applied on a component basis.

+ While the replacement cost of the assets could be supported by market supplied evidence (level 2), the other
unabservahle inputs (such as estimates of residual value, useful life, and asset condition) were also required
(level 3).
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Mote 10. Fair Value Measurements icontinued)

The Condition rating inputs can be defined in the following table, noting that the condition assessments for
Balonne Shire Council have been applied in 0.5 intervals:

Percentage
Description of life
remaining
0 Brand new or rehabilitated to new 100%
1 Mear new with no visible deterioration 0%
> Excellent overall condition early stages of deterioration 80%
3 Very good overall condition with obvious deterioration evident 70%

Good overall  condition, obvious deterioration, serviceability impaired very
4 slightly 60%

Fairoverall  condition, obvious deterioration, some serviceability loss

5 50%
Fair to poor overall condition, obvious deterioration, some serviceability

6 loss 40%
Poor overall condition, obvious deterioration, some

7 serviceability  loss, high maintenance costs 30%
Very poor overall condition,  severe deterioration, very high

8 maintenance costs, Considar renewal 20%
Extremely poor condition, severe serviceability problems, renewal

9 required immediately 10%

10 Failed asset, no longer serviceable. Should not remain in service 0%

The valuation techniques used in the determination of fair values maximise the use of observable data where it is
available and relies as little as possible on entity specifics, The disclosure of valuation estimates is designed to
provide users with an insight into the judgements that have been made in the determination of fair values.

Residual values

Balonne Shire Council have adopted residual values of 50,

Componentising Assets

Buildings above a threshold of $500,000 have been componentised with exception of assets where it is
not appropriate to componentise.
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Mote 10. Fair Value Measurements icontinued)

Percentage of Assets inspected

In excess of 95% of assets, both land and building, were inspected at the comprehensive revaluation as at
30 June 2016.

Valuation Processes - Roads, Water and Sewer Assets

Roads, Water and Sewer Assets were independently valued as at 30 June 2015 by AssetVal Pty Ltd. A desklop
valuations has been performed by AssetVal as at 30 June 2016 and 30 June 2017.

Where there is an active and liquid market as evidenced by sales transactions of similar asset types, the Market
Approach by Direct Comparison, Income or Summation methods can be utilised, and is an accepted valuation
methodology under AASB13 Fair Value Measurement.

Due to the predominantly specialised nature of Local Government Assets, the roads, water and sewer asset
valuations have been undertaken on a Cost Approach (Depreciated Replacement Cost), an accepted valuation
methodology under AASB13 Fair Value Measurement. The cost approach is deemed a Level 3 Input. Under this
approach, the following process has been adopted:

«  Where there is no market, the net current value of an asset is the gross current value less accumulated
depreciation to reflect the consumed or expired service potential of the asset. Published/available market
data for recent projects, andfor published cost guides are ulilised to determine the estimated replacement
cost (gross value) of the asset, including allowances for preliminaries and professional fees.

« A condition assessment is applied, which is based on factors such as the age of the asset, overall condition
as noted by the Valuer during inspection, economic andfor functional obsolescence. The condition
assessment directly translates to the level of depreciation applied.

« |n determining the level of accumulated depreciation for major assets, we have disaggregated into significant
components which exhibit different patterns of consumpfion (useful lives). The non-depreciable component is
also factored which is the value at the time the asset is considered to be no longer available. The condition
assessment is applied on a component basis.

+ While the replacement cost of the assets could be supported by market supplied evidence (level 2), the other
unobservable inputs (such as estimates of the non- depreciable component, useful life, and asset condition)
were also required (level 3).

The Condition rating inputs that have been adopled by the Balonne Shire Council can be defined in the following

table:
Percen
Description S
remaining
5  Very high level of remaining service potential 80-100%
4 High level of remaining service potential 60-80%
3 Adequate level of remaining service potential 40-60%
2  Barely adequate level of remaining service potential 20-40%
1 Total end of life 0-20%
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Mote 10. Fair Value Measurements icontinued)

The valuation techniques used in the determination of fair values maximise the use of observable data where it is
available and relies as litle as possible on enfity specifics. The disclosure of valuation estimates is designed to
provide users with an insight into the judgements that have been made in the determination of fair values.

Roads

Calculation of Current Replacement Cost

The roads were componentised into formation, gravelipavement and seal with unit rates applied to the individual
components in order to determine the replacement cost.

The unit rates applied are based on Greenfield project costs and include all materials, labour and overheads.
These unit rates are estimated using information collated from similar recent project costs, unit rate databases,
indices, Rawlinson's Construction Handbook and quotations.

Accumulated Depreciation

A sample of the roads were visually inspected by the Valuer. Mo testing or measurement of defects or condition
was undertaken. An assessment of remaining useful life was made by the Valuer taking into consideration the
visual condition, construction date, evidence of recent repairs or capital works and the surrounding environmental
factors.

Percentage of Assets Inspected

A sample (approximately 10%) of the roads were inspected as part of the valuation.

Bridges

Calculation of Current Replacement Cost

Bridges were componentised with unit rates applied to the individual components in order to determine the
replacement cost.

The unit rates applied are based on Greenfield project costs and include all materials, labour and overheads.
These unit rates are estimated using information collated from similar recent project costs, unit rate databases,
indices, Rawlinson's Construction Handbook and quotations.

Accumulated Depreciation

The bridges were visually inspected as part of the valuation process. No testing or measurement of defects or
condition was undertaken. An assessment of remaining useful ife was made by the Valuer taking into
consideration the wvisual condition, construction date, evidence of recent repairs or capital works and the
surrounding environmental factors.

Percentage of Assets Inspected

All of the bridge assets were inspected as part of the valuation.
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Mote 10. Fair Value Measurements (continued)

Water & Sewer

Calculation of Current Replacement Cost

The water and sewer assets were componentized and valued independently, with allowances for complexity,
size, function and site factors. As a check these components are generally combined into a lump sum item and
compared against recent similar projects and in-house databases.

Accumulated Depreciation

An assessment of remaining useful life was made by the Valuer after inspection taking into consideration the
visual condition, construction date, evidence of recent repairs or capital works and the surmounding environmenial
factors. Where necessary, further guidance on remaining life was sort from council engineering staff.

Percentage of Assets Inspected

95% of the above ground active water & sewer assets were inspected as part of the valuation. A large sample of
the above-surface passive assels were inspected.
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Mote 11. Trade and Other Payables

Notes 5'000 5'000
Current
Creditors and Accruals 652 345
Annual Leave 658 B76
TOTAL CURRENT TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 1,310 1,021
Mote 12. Borrowings
Current
Loans - Queensland Treasury Corporation 255 240
TOTAL CURRENT BORROWINGS 255 240
MNon-current
Loans - Queensland Treasury Corporation 2,925 3,181
TOTAL NON-CURRENT BORROWINGS 2,925 3,181
Reconciliation of Loan Movements for the year
Loans - Queensland Treasury Corporation
Opening Balance at Beginning of Financial Year 3421 3,851
Principal Repaymenis (241) (230)
Book value at end of financial year 3,180 3,421

The QTC loan market value at the reporting date was £3,566,014. This represents the value of the debt if Council
repaid it at that date. As itis the intention of Council to hold the debt for its term, no provision is required to be
made in these accounts,

Loan Disclosures

Mo assets have been pledged as security by the Council for any liabilities, however all loans are guaranteed by the
CQueensland Government.

All borrowings are in AU denominated amounts and carried at amortised cost, interest being expensed as it accrues.
Mo interest has been capitalised during the current or comparative reporting period. Expected final repayment dates
vary fram 15 June 2021 to 15 June 2032,

There have been no defaults or breaches of the loan agreement during the period.

Principal and interest repayments are made guarterly in arrears.
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Mote 13. Provisions
2017 2016
Notes 5'000 $'000
Current
Long Service Leave 984 938
Other Entitlements 45 41
TOTAL RRENT PROVISION 1,029 981
Mon-current
Long Service Leave 151 168
TOTAL NON-CURRENT PROVISIONS 151 168
Mote 14. Asset Revaluation Reserve
Movements in the asset revaluation reserve:
Balance at beginning of financial year 195,216 186,121
Met adjustment to non-current assets at end of period to reflect a
change in current fair value:
Land - (2,322)
Buildings (55) (3,382)
Water Supply Network 112 519
Other Infrastructure Assets 285 (B73)
Transport Infrastructure 2,047 13,919
Urban Waslte Waler Nebwork (203) 1,234
g 2,184 9,095
Balance at end of financial year 197,400 195,216
Asset revaluation reserve analysis
The closing balance of the Asset Revaluation Reserve comprises the following
asset categories:
Land 3,638 3638
Buildings 10,518 10,692
Land Held for Resale 29 29
Plant and Equipment 1,488 1,488
Furniture and Fittings 307 307
Water Supply Network 18,531 18,421
Other Infrastructure Assels 3163 2758
Transport Infrastructure 147,535 145,489
Urban Waste Water Network 12,181 12,384
Balance at end of financial year 197,400 195,216
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Mote 15. Commitments for Expenditure
2017 2016

Notes 5'000 $'000
(a) Capital Commitments (exclusive of GST)
Capital expenditure committed for at the reporting date but not recognised in
the financial statements as liabilities:
Praperty, Plant and Equipment
Buildings 146 -
Plant and Equipment 157 290
Other Infrastructure 197 -
Transport 104 -
These expenditures are payable as follows:
Within the next year 604 290
Total Payable 604 290

Sources for Funding of Capital Commitments:
Future Grants and Contributions 604 -
Total Sources of Funding - -

{b) Contractual commitments

Contractual commitments at end of financial year but not recognised in the
fimancial statements are as follows:

Waste Collection Contract (per year) - Expires 30/06/2025 526 350
Landfill Maintenance Contract (per year) - Expires 30/11/2017 98 -
624 350

page 30

83



appendix 3 - financial statements

Financial Statements 2017
Balonne Shire Council

Motes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Mote 16. Contingent Liabilities

Details and estimates of maximum amounts of contingent liabilities are as follows;

Local Government Mutual

The Council is a member of the local government mutual liability self-insurance pool, LGM Queensland. In the
event of the pool being wound up or it is unable to meet its debts as they fall due, the trust deed and rules
provide that any accumulated deficit will be met by the individual pool members in the same proportion as their
contribution is o the total pool confributions in respect to any year that a deficit arises.

As at 30 June 2017 the financial statements reportad an accumulated surplus and it is not anticipated any liability
will arise.

Local Government Workcare

The Council is a member of the Queensland local government worker's compensation self-insurance scheme,
Local Government Workcare. Under this scheme the Council has provided an indemnity towards a bank
guarantee to cover bad debts which may remain should the self insurance licence be cancelled and there was
insufficient funds available to cover outstanding liabilities. Only the Queensland Government's workers
compensation authority may call on any part of the guarantee should the above circumstances arise. The
Council's maximum exposure to the bank guarantee is 386, 706,

Mote 17. Superannuation

The Council contributes to the Local Government Superannuation Scheme (Qld) (the scheme). The scheme is a
Multi-employer Plan as defined in the Australian Accounting Standard AASBE119 Employee Benefils .

The Queensland Local Government Superannuation Board, the trustee of the scheme, advised that the local
government superannuation scheme was a complying superannuation scheme for the purpose of the
Commonwealth Superannuation Industry (Supervision) legislation.

The Scheme has three elements referred to as:

- The City Defined Benefits Fund (CDBF) which covers former members of the City Super Defined Benefits Fund

- The Regional Defined Benefits Fund (Regional DBF) which covers defined benefit fund members working for
regional local governments; and

- The Accumulation Benefits Fund (ABF)

The ABF is a defined contribution Scheme as defined in AASE 119. Council has no liability to or interast in the
ABF other than the payment of the statutory contributions as required by the Local Government Act 2009,

Council does not have any employees who are members of the CDBF and, therefore, is not exposed to the
obligations, assets or costs associated with this fund.

The Regional DBF is a defined benefit plan as defined in AASB118. The Council is not able to account for the
Regional DBF as a defined benefit plan in accordance with AASB119 because the scheme is unable to account
to the Council for its proportionate share of the defined benefit obligation, plan assets and costs. The funding
policy adopted in respect of the Regional DBF is directed at ensuring that the benefits accruing to members and
beneficiaries are fully funded as they fall due.
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Mote 17. Superannuation (continued)

To ensure the ongoing solvency of the Regional DBF, the scheme's trustee can vary the rate of contributions from
relevant local government employers subject to advice from the scheme's actuary. As at the reporting date, no
changes had been made to prescribed employer contributions which remain at 12% of employes assets and there
are no known requirements to change the rate of contributions.

Any amount by which either fund is over or under funded would only affect future benefits and contributions to the
Regional DBF, and is not an asset or liability of the Council. Accordingly there is no recognition in the financial
statements of any over or under funding of the scheame.

As at the reporting date, the assets of the scheme are sufficient to meet the vested benefils,

The most recent actuarial assessment of the scheme was undertaken as at 1 July 2015. The actuary indicated
that "At the valuation date of 1 July 2015, the net assets of the scheme exceeded the vested benefits and the
scheme was in a satisfactory financial position as at the valuation date.”

In the 2015 actuarial report the actuary has recommended no change to the employer contribution levels at this
time.

Under the Local Government Act 2009, the trustee of the scheme has the power to levy additional contributions
on councils which have employees in the Regional DBF whan the actuary advises such additional contributions
are payable - normally when the assets of the DBF are insufficient to meet members' benefits.

There are curmently 65 enfities contributing to the Regional DBF plan and any changes in contribution rates would
apply equally to all 65 entities. Balonne Shire Council made less than 4% of the total contributions to the plan in the
2018-17 financial year.

The next actuarial investigation will be made as at 1 July 2018,

2017 2016
Noles 5'000 $'000
The amount of Superannuation Contributions paid by Council to the Scheme
in this Period for the benefit of employees was: 5 609 595
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Mote 18. Reconciliation of Net Result for the year to Net
Cash Inflow/(Qutflow) from Operating Activities
2017 2016
Notes 5'000 $'000
Met operating result from Income Statement 4,183 1,053
Mon-cash items
Depreciation and Amortisation 8,012 7,594
8,012 7,594
Investing and development activities
Met Losses/(Gains) on Disposal of Assets (136) (41)
Mon Cash Capital Grants and Contributions (4,304) (3,744)

(4,440) (3,785)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

(Increase)/Decrease in Receivables (1,7686) 2,314
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories {18) (1)
Increase/{Decrease) in Payables and Accruals 307 (173)
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities (1) 1
Increase/{Decrease) in Employee Leave Entitlements A (273)
(1,447) 1,868

Met cash provided from/{used in) Operating Activities from the ) o o
Statement of Cash Flows 6308 6,730

Note 19. Events Occurring After Balance Sheet Date

Council is unaware of any malerial or significant "non adjusting events” that should be disclosed.
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Mote 20. Financial Instruments

Council has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments; (i) interest rate risk, (i) credit risk, and
{iii) liquidity risk.

This note provides information (both qualitative and quantitative) to assist statement users evaluate the significance
of financial instruments on the Council's financial position and financial perfformance, including the nature and extent
of risks and how the Council manages these exposures.

Financial Risk Management

Council is responsible for the establishment and oversight of the risk management framewark, together with
developing and monitoring risk management policies.

Council's audit commitiee approves policies for overall risk management, as well as
specifically for managing credit, liquidity and market risk,

The Council's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced, to set appropriate
limits and controls and to monitor these risks and adherence against limits. The Council aims o manage volatility to
minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Counecil.

Credit Risk Exposure

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss if a counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations. These obligations arise principally from the Council's investments and receivables from customers.

Exposure to credit risk is managed through regular analysis of credit counterparty ability to meet payment
obligations. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure,

Investments in financial instruments are required to be made with Queensland Treasury Corporation (QTC) or similar
State/Commonwealth bodies or financial institutions in Australia, in line with the requirements of the Statutory
Bodies Financial Arrangements Act 1982.
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Note 20. Financial Instruments (continued)
2017 2016

Notes 5'000 $'000
The following table represents the maximum exposure to credit risk based
on the carrying amounts of financial assets at the end of the reporting period:
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 7 21,616 17,168
Receivables - Rates 8 356 252
Receivables - Other 8 3,207 1,526
Total 25179 18,946

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Council may be exposed to credit risk through its investments in the QTC Cash Fund and QTC Working Capital
Facility. The QTC Cash Fund is an asset management portfolio that invests with a wide range of high credit rated
counterparties. Deposits with the QTC Cash Fund are capital guaranteed. Working Capital Facility deposits have

a duration of one day and all investments are required to have a minimum credit rating of "A-", therefore the
likelihood of the counterparty having capacity to meet its financial commitments is strong,

Trade and Other Receivables
In the case of rate receivables, the Council has the power to sell the property to recover any defaulted amounts.
In effect this power protects the Council against credit risk in the case of defaults.

In aother cases, the Council assesses the credit risk before providing goods or services and applies normal business
credit protection procedures to minimise the risk.

By the nature of the Councils operations, there is a gecgraphical concentration of risk in the Council's area,
Because the area is largaly agricultural, there is also a concentration in the agricultural sector,

Ageing of past due receivables and the amount of any impairment is disclosed in the following table;

2017 2016

Motes £'000 £'000
Receivables
Fully Performing 282 189
Past due:
- Less than 30 days overdue 2,887 1,441
- 31 to 60 days overdue 3 5
- 61 to 90 days overdue - 4
- Greater than 90 days overdue 480 263
- Impaired (&) (&)
Total ] 3,636 1,876
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Mote 20. Financial Instruments (continued)

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk refers to the situation where the Council may encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated
with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Council is exposed to
liquidity risk through its trading in the normal course of business and borrowings from the Queensland Treasury
Corporation for capital works.

Council manages ils exposure 1o liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash deposits and undrawn facilities, both
short and long term, to cater for unexpected volatility in cash flows, These facilities are disclosed in Note 12,

The following table sets out the liquidity risk in relation to financial liabilities held by the Council, It represents the
remaining contractual cashflows (principal and interest) of financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period,
excluding the impact of netting agreements:

Total
Contractual Carrying
0 to 1 year 1to 5 years Ower 5 years Cash Flows Amount
5000 5000 5000 $000 F000
2017
Trade and Other Payables 655 - - 655 1,310
Loans - QTC 426 1,570 2,378 4 374 3,180
1,081 1,570 2378 5,029 4,490
2016
Trade and Other Payables 345 - - 345 1,021
Loans - QTC 426 1,708 2,869 4,800 3421
77 1,705 2,669 5,145 4,442

The outflows in the above table are not expected to occur significantly earlier and are not expected to be for
significantly different amounts than indicated in the table.
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Mote 20. Financial Instruments (continued)

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, will affect the Council’s income or the
value of its holdings of financial instruments.

Interest Rate Risk

The Council is exposed to interest rate risk through investments and borrowings with Queensland Treasury
Corporation.

The Council has access to a mix of variable and fixed rate funding options through Queensland Treasury
Corporation so that interest rate risk exposure can be minimised,

Sensitivity to interest rate movements is shown for variable financial assets and liabilities based on the carrying
amount at repaorting date,

The following interest rate sensitivity analysis depicts what effect a reasonably possible change in interest rates
(assumed to be 1%) would have on the profit and equity, based on the camying values at the end of the reporting
period. The calculation assumes that the change in interest rates would be held constant over the period.

MNet Carrying MNet Result Equity
Amount 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease
£'000 $'000 £'000 3000 $'000

2017
QTC Cash Fund 14,317 143 (143) 143 (143)
Other 7,299 74 (74) 74 (74)
Loans - QTC (3,180) (32) 3z (32) az
Met 18,436 185 (185) 185 (185)
2018
QTC Cash Fund 14,776 148 (148) 148 (148)
Other 2,392 23 (23) 23 (23)
Loans - QTC (3.421) (37) av (37) a7
Met 13,747 134 (134) 134 (134)

In relation to the QTC loans held by the Council, the following has been applied:

QTC Generic Debt Pool - the generic debt pool products approximate a fixed rate loan. There is a negligible impact
on interest sensitivity from changes in interest rates for generic debt pool borrowings.

Fair Value

The fair value of trade and other receivables and payables is assumead to approximate the value of the ariginal
transaction, less any allowance for impairment.

The fair value of borrowings with QTC is based on the market value of debt outstanding. The market value of a debt
abligation is the discounted value of future cash flows based on prevailing market rates and represents the amount
required to be repaid if this was to occur at balance date, The market value of debt is provided by QTC and is
disclosed in Note 12.
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Note 21. Transactions with Related Parties
Key Management Personne|
Transactions with Key Management Personel
Councillors, Chief Executive Officer, Directors
The compensation paid to Key Management Personnel for comprises;

2017

5000
Short-Term Employee Benefits 1,017
Post-Employment Benefits 53
Long-Term Benefits 1
Total 1,071

Council has obtained Related Party Declarations for each Councillor, the Chief Executive Officer and each Director
for the period 1 July 2016 to 30 June 2017.

There were no material related parly transactions identified that require disclosure under AASE 124,
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Management Certificate
for the year ended 30 June 2017

These General Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared pursuant to sections 176 and 177 of the
Local Govermment Regulation 2012 (the Regulations) and other prescribed requirements.

In accordance with Section 212(5) of the Regulation, we certify that:

(i) the prescribed requirements of the Local Government Acl 2009 and Local Government Regulalions 2012
for the establishment and keeping of accounts have been complied with in all material respects; and

(i) the General Purpose Financial Statements, as set out on pages 2 to 38, present a true and fair view,

in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, of the Council's transactions for the financial year
and financial position at the end of the year,

folud k- =

_-l-""".’l . =
Cr R W Marsh MrJM HagL/
MAYOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
11 October 2017 11 October 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Councillors of Balonne Shire Council

Report on the Audit of the Financial Report

Opinion

| have audited the financial report of Balonne Shire Council,
In my epinian, the financial report:

a) gives a true and fair view of the council's financial position as at 30 June 2017, and of
its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended

b} complies with the Local Government Act 2008, the Local Government Regulation 2012
and Australian Accounting Standards.

The financial report comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2017, the
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, notes to the financial statements including significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the certificate given by the Mayor
and Chief Executive Officer.

Basis for opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with the Auditor-General of Queensland Auditing
Standards, which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial report section of my report.

| am independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in
Australia. | have also fulfiled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code
and the Auditor-General of Queensland Audifing Standards.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion.

Other information

Other information comprises the information included in Balonne Shire Council’s annual
report for the year ended 30 June 2017, but does not include the financial report and my
auditor's report thereon. At the date of this auditor’s report, the other information was the
current year financial sustainability statement and long-term financial sustainability
statement.

My opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly | do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. However, as required by the Local
Government Regulation 2012, | have expressed a separate opinion on the current year
financial sustainability statement.

In connection with my audit of the financial report, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial report and my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.
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If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude that there is a material misstaternent of
this information, | am required to report that fact. | have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the council for the financial report

The council is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair
view in accordance with the Local Government Act 2009, the Local Government Regulation
2012 and Australian Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as the council
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

The council is also responsible for assessing the council’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless it is intended to abolish the council or to otherwise cease
operations.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial report

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a
whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, | exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud s higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal contral.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the council's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the council.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the council's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the council's
ability to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, |
am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. | base my
conclusions on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the council to cease to continue as a
going concem.
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. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with the council regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that | identify during my audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
In accordance with .40 of the Auditor-General Act 2009, for the year ended 30 June 2017:
a) |received all the information and explanations | required.

B}  Inmy opinion, the prescribed requirements in relation to the establishment and keeping
of accounts were complied with in all material respects.

Vo
D A STO Queensland Audit Office

as delegate of the Auditor-General Brisbane

"-=.._____

180CT 2007
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Balonne Shire Council

Current Year Financial Sustainability Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Actual Target
2017 2017

Measures of Financial Sustainability

Council's performance at 30 June 2017 against key financial ratios and targels.

Performance Indicators

1. Operating Surplus Ratio
Met Result (excluding capital ibems)

. -
Total Operating Revanua (excuding capital items) 0s% 0-10%

An indicator of which the extent to which revenues raised cover
operational expenses only or are available for capital funding
purposes or other purposes.

2. Asset Sustainability Ratio
Capital Expenditure on the Replacement of Assets (renewals) 31.68% more than
Depraciation Expense 90%

An approximation of the extent to which the infrastructure assets
managed are being replaced as these reach the end of their useful
lives.

3. Net Financial Liabilities Ratio
Total Liabilities less Current Assets -84.12% less than
Total Operating Revenue (excluding capital tems) ’ 60%

An indicator of the extent to which the net financial liabilities can
be serviced by its operating revenue,

Mote 1 - Basis of Preparation

The current year financial sustainability statement is a special purpose statement prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Local Government Requlation 2012 and the Financial Management (Sustainability] Guideline
2013, The amounts used to calculate the three reported measures are prepared on an accrual basis and are drawn
from the Council's audited general purpose financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2017,
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Balonne Shire Council

Current Year Financial Sustainability Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Certificate of Accuracy
for the year ended 30 June 2017

This current-year financial sustainability statement has been prepared pursuant to Section 178 of the Local
Government Regufation 2072 (the Regulation).

In accordance with Section 212(5) of the Regulation we certify that this Current-Year Financial Sustainability
Statement has been accurately calculated.

__.__,..-4'"' )
o —
Cr RW Marsh Mr.J M Magin
MAYOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
11 October 2017 11 October 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Councillers of Balonne Shire Council

Report on the Current Year Financial Sustainability Statement

Opinion

| have audited the accompanying current year financial sustainability statement of Balonne
Shire Council for the year ended 30 June 2017, comprising the statement, explanatory
notes, and the certificate of accuracy given by the Mayor and the Chief Executive Officer.

In accordance with section 212 of the Local Government Regulation 2012, in my opinion, in
all material respects, the current year financial sustainability statement of Balonne Shire
Council for the year ended 30 June 2017 has been accurately calculated.

Basis of opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with the Auditor-General of Queensiand Auditing
Standards, which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibifities for the audit of the
cuwrent year financial sustainability staterment section of my report.

| am independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the statement in
Australia. | have also fulfiled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code
and the Auditor-General of Queensland Audifing Standards.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion.

Emphasis of matter — basis of accounting

| draw attention to Note 1 which describes the basis of accounting. The current year financial
sustainability statement has been prepared in accordance with the Financial Management
(Sustainability) Guideline 2013 for the purpose of fulfilling the council's reporting
responsibilities under the Local Government Regulation 2012, As a result, the statement
may not be suitable for another purpose. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information

Other information comprises the information included in Balonne Shire Council's annual
report for the year ended 30 June 2017, but does not include the current year financial
sustainability statement and my auditor's report thereon. At the date of this auditor’s report,
the other information was the general purpose financial statements and long-term financial
sustainability statement.

My opinion on the current year financial sustainability statement does not cover the other
information and accordingly | do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
However, as required by the Local Government Regulation 2012, | have expressed a
separate opinion on the general purpose financial report.
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In connection with my audit of the financial report, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial report and my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this information, | am required to report that fact. | have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the council for the current year financial sustainability statement

The council is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the current year
financial sustainability statement in accordance with the Local Government Regulation 2012,
The council's responsibility also includes such internal control as the council determines is
necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of the statement that is accurately
calculated and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the current year financial sustainability
statement

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the current year financial
sustainability statement as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of this statement.

My responsibility does not extend to forming an opinion on the appropriateness or relevance
of the reported ratios, nor on the council's future sustainability.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, | exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the statement, whether due to
fraud or emor, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion, The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the council’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the council.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the statement, including the
disclosures, and whether the statement represents the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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| communicate with the council regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that | identify during my audit.

o % 19 00T 200
D A Sto W A B / Queensland Audit Office
as delegate of the Auditor-General ~LUDIT OFFIEZS Brisbane
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Balonne Shire Council

Long-Term Financial Sustainability Statement

Certificate of Accuracy
for the long-term financial sustainability statement prepared as at 30 June 2017

This long-term financial sustainability statement has been prepared pursuant to Section 178 of the Local
Govemment Reguwation 2012 (the Regulation),

In accordance with Section 212(5) of the Regulation we certify that this long-term financial sustainability statement
has been accurataly calculated.

..-""'".# "
Cr R W Marsh Mr J M Magin
MAYOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
11 Qctober 2017 11 October 2017
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